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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in Bermuda and its shares were
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual

report.

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding
and of its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries are
hereafter collectively referred as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the media-related business, including broadcasting

and publishing and multi-media product trading business.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are effective or available for early adoption for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005.
Information on the changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these new and revised HKFRSs
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements is provided in note 3.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements are in Hong Kong dollars, rounded
to the nearest thousand. The measurement basis used in
the preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that the following assets are stated at
their fair values explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
securities; and

— trading securities.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2006 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
and the Group's interest in associates, except for non-
controlled subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year (see note 18) up to 31 March each year. The results of
controlled subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement
from or to the date of their acquisition or disposal, as
appropriate. All material intra-group balances and
transactions are eliminated on consolidation.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

As explained in note 18 to the financial statements, certain
of the Company's subsidiaries (“Unconsolidated
Subsidiaries”) were disposed of during the year, the Group
was not able to access their books and records together
with the supporting documents for the year ended 31
March 2005. Accordingly, the Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
were not regarded as controlled subsidiaries of the
Company and were deconsolidated from the consolidated
financial statements with effect from 1 April 2004.
Particulars of these non-controlled subsidiaries are set out
in note 18 to the financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 4.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and controlled entities

A subsidiary is a company in which the Group, directly or
indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital
or controls more than half of the voting power or controls
the composition of the board of directors. Subsidiaries are
considered to be controlled if the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating

policies, so as to obtain benefits from their activities.

An investment in a controlled subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from the date

that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being the
portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to
equity interests that are not owned by the Company,
whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet and statement
of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. Minority
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated income statement as an allocation
of the total profit or loss for the year between minority

interests and the equity holders of the Company.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and controlled entities (Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess,
and any further losses applicable to the minority, are
charged against the Group’s interest except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits the Group's interest
is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of

losses previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

2(n)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial

and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method
and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the
associate’s net assets, unless it is classified as held for sale.
The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associates for the year, including any impairment loss on
goodwill relating to the investment in associates recognised
for the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 4 #§ | 41

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)



R ¥ R S Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ¥ %5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2. FEEFBEX#E)
(d) BEQTF (&)

(e)

EAKESMZBERBHER

e RE R AIAEEZ
BETDRET @ YiF ILHERBR
XKEE - EHAKEEELX

TREERBAERRBER
AR AIBRSN o Bt T - &
SERBERR 2 Ea RITE
BEFEZREFRAEERAK
SEzEHES MEZERE
BLHERAEERBZ QAR
BEFB D -

PR IRAEE NG A T
B 2 2 L BIAE 8 - 5%
ERFERAESRERDHRA
EHEAE WEZBRT -
Y B TS i
R o

[k

BEREBAMH KA ER
Az REBEARERAKER
AR DHEE - AEMKRAE
NP FEIESZERE -

BEDRRANRZFTREESRE
Sk - B EIRERSEL
B WEFETRENR (B
ffet2(n)) - Bt E AR E -
BEZEEED ABRZ QA
BmZREE -

AEERFAKRBABASHE
E BEAIXARBERFFE
Z FE2h R R A A B AR AN SR
ERRZREZEMZERE - T)
B R B s AR -

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of future losses is discontinued except to the
extent the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the associate, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment jointly controlled
entity, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit and loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(n)). In respect
of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the interest in the associate.

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate is recognised immediately in
profit and loss.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an associate during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets and are initially stated at fair value. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are initially recognised in the balance sheet at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are
stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the balance
sheet at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Other investments in securities are classified as available-
for-sale securities and are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, except for impairment losses
(see note 2(n)) and, in the case of monetary items, foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised directly in
profit or loss.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date of
the Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell

the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is charged immediately to profit or loss, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or

hedge the net investment in foreign operation.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(n)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see
note 2(m)); and

— other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in

profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment except buildings, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the reducing balance
method over their estimated useful lives at the rate of

20% per annum.

Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more

than 25 years after the date of completion.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and

its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Purchased programme rights

Costs, which comprise acquired programme costs in respect
of programming license agreements for rights of
presentation, is capitalised and charged to the income
statement over the shorter of the license period or over
the estimated number of future showings and the estimated
useful lives. Programme rights with a license period of

twelve months or less are classified as current assets.

License fee prepaid for reproduction of multi-media
products are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 2(n)). The license fee is
amortised on a straight line basis over the license period.
Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.
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2.

R ¥ R S Notes to the Financial Statements
BRI E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

U]

Copyright

Copyright costs are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(n)). The copyright costs are
capitalised and charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the copyright period
or over the estimated useful lives. Both the period and

method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Broadcasting programmes

Broadcasting programmes are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(n)). Costs
comprise the production costs of the programmes which
consist of direct expenditure and an appropriate portion of
production overheads. The production costs of the
broadcasting programmes are charged to the income

statement upon the first showing of the programmes.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories,
arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as

an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Leased assets

Leases of assets under which the lessee assumes
substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Leases of assets under which
the lessor has not transferred all the risks and benefits of

ownership are classified as operating leases.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases.

ANNUAL REPORT £ #§ | 47



R ¥ R S Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA TIE)

2.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

(iii)

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost of the
assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Company or Group will obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note
2(h).

accordance with the accounting policy as set out in

Impairment losses are accounted for in

note 2(n). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining

balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. The cost of
acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease term.
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2.

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. If any such evidence exists, any
impairment loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

For unquoted equity securities and current
receivables that are carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
current receivables are reversed if in a
subsequent period the amount of the
impairment loss decreases. Impairment losses
to equity securities are not reversed.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets).
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impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset's carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is removed from equity and is recognised in
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
the asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised directly in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-
sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired,
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  Pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as

being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates
(except for those classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale)): and

—  goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether

or not there is any indication of impairment.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
unit are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

52

== 3 (& @)A R 2 & TIDETIME SUN (GROUP) LIMITED



2.

FEEBE @)

(n)

(o)

BEERME (&)

(i) R fb&ZEpE (&)

—  BEREEE

LB AN ZBEM
5 HAAEE AR
Bl &B bt HRA
MEF - AIEERE
BR - BEEEZR
EBEBAATED -

PfT 8 B 2 Rl 18 /&5 18 A
BRREBERBEFE
ERREERMED
BT<EEREES
PR o P& [ 2 R (B &
BRERRD 2FE
FFAEE ©

B 5 & H e WR

B REMBWRERIFEA
FERER  HRUREBHEKAN
BARZRRREBE (ZME2n)
SRR - M W BR SRR R T RE
BALTZRBEER - BAHE|AE
METERAXMRTEL T
BEREBRIRI - RUtBERT -
% 5 e MR TR TS 1 7S R R IR
RRBEER (ZATaE2(n) 58 °

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continue)

(n)

(o)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss

in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair

value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less

impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note

2(n)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans

made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms

or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such

cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 2(n)).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continue)

(p)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted into share capital
at the option of the holder, where the number of shares
issued does not vary with changes in their fair value, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments. At initial
recognition the liability component of the convertible bonds
is calculated as the present value of the future interest and
principal payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognised as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity

components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method. The equity component is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the bond is converted or

redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bond reserve,
together with the carrying value of the liability component
at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares issued.
If the bond is redeemed, the convertible bond reserve is

released directly to retained profits.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continue)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between cost and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case

they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow

statement.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continue)

(t)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions

to defined contribution plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a share option reserve
within equity. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the

options will vest.

56

== 3 (& @)A R 2 & TIDETIME SUN (GROUP) LIMITED



2.

FEEBE @)

(t)

BEEH (&

(i)

(iii)

YR A 5% (8)

N BN g =R
TREBZBRERE - K
FREERXAERER
REE BRIBBEFE
EHERBRA A FEMED
ZAEMBE - HHkE
RAAETEHNFE 2B
o WHBEREEEED
HEHE REBEH -
AEEeHBARMAXZ
BRBELAE AR
BEERECERSE (X
i 7 A M R 8 1 D AR B 5B
) - ME {2 E R B s A R
AABRDHERBZR
BB {5k A T 2808 W 2 BB A A
AIERSN o BRABER T E
BREEETER  BEEB
g E (EReEi=s
Betn i B RR) S AR JE
(EREEERRARRER
M) RILE °

A LB F 45 7

RIEEARAR (LER)
AEEEEALERMEE
BRAreet 2 EXFF R E
FRER TR ILEREIEEB
B8 & B B2 1R A B R

=
nijm\ °

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the share option reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released

directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of

withdrawal.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case

they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to

tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses

and unused tax credits.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be

utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. The
carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a

net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can

be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the profit or

loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Revenue from the production of broadcasting
programme

Revenue from the production of broadcasting programme
is recognised when the production is completed and the
master copy has been delivered to the customers.

Revenue from sub-licensing of programme rights

Revenue from sub-licensing of programme rights is
recognised upon delivery of the pre-recorded audio
visual products and other materials for the programme
rights to the customers.

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
products are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.

Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(x)

(y)

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Barter transactions

Revenue from barter transaction are recognised at fair value
based on the fair value of the goods and services received

in the transaction.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the presentation currency of the Group and the functional

currency of the Company.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the

fair value was determined.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

(2)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximately the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after
1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised directly
in a separate component of equity. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences recognised in equity which
relate to that foreign operation is included in the calculation

of the profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they
are capitalized as being directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready

for its intended use or sale.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceased when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset

for its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and
the party are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals
(being members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other
entities and include entities which are under the significant
influence of related parties of the Group where those
parties are individuals, and post-employment benefit plans
which are for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are

different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the

purposes of these financial statements.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ab) Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances
and transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar as those

available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one

period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,

corporate and financing expenses.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following new and revised HKFRSs are relevant for the
Group's financial statements and are adopted for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements:

HKAS 1

HKAS 2
HKAS 7
HKAS 8

HKAS 10
HKAS 12
HKAS 14
HKAS 16

HKAS 17

HKAS 18

HKAS 19

HKAS 21

HKAS 24

HKAS 26

HKAS 27

HKAS 32

HKAS 33

HKAS 36

HKAS 37

HKAS 38
HKAS 39

HKFRS 2

HKFRS 3

HKFRS 5

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Cash Flow Statements

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Income Taxes

Segment Reporting

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates

Related Party Disclosures

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit
Plans

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation

Earnings per Share

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

Intangible Assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

Share-based Payment

Business Combinations

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations
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R ¥ R S Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ¥ %5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 26,
32, 33, 36, 37 and 39, and HKFRS 5 has had no material impact
on the Group’s accounting policies and the methods of

computation, presentation and disclosures in the Group's

consolidated financial statements. The major effects on adoption

of the other HKFRSs are summarised as follows:

(a) Changes in presentation (HKAS 1 — Presentation of

Financial Statements)

(i)

(ii)

Comparative information on movements in
property, plant and equipment (HKAS 1 —
Presentation of Financial Statements)

HKAS 1 requires the new disclosures to be made in
these financial statements. Accordingly, the Group is
no longer permitted not to disclose comparative
information on movements in property, plant and

equipment.

Disclosure of judgements and key assumptions
(HKAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements)

HKAS 1 requires the disclosure of judgements (apart
from those involving estimations) and key assumptions
concerning the future and other sources of estimation
uncertainty. These disclosures are detailed in note 4

to the financial statements.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Changes in presentation (HKAS 1 — Presentation of

Financial Statements) (Continued)

(iii) Presentation of shares of associates’ taxation

(iv)

(HKAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements)

In prior years, the Group’s share of taxation of
associates accounted for using the equity method
was included as part of the Group's income tax in
the consolidated income statement. With effect from
1 April 2005, in accordance with the implementation
guidance in HKAS 1, the Group has changed the
presentation and includes the share of taxation of
associates accounted for using the equity method in
the shares of profit or loss reported in the
consolidated income statement before arriving at the
Group's profit or loss before tax. These changes in

presentation have been applied retrospectively.

Minority interests (HKAS 1 — Presentation of
and HKAS 27 —
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements)

Financial Statements,

In prior years, minority interests at the balance sheet
date were presented in the consolidated balance sheet
separately from liabilities and as a deduction from
net assets. Minority interests in the results of the
Group for the year were also separately presented in
the income statement as a deduction before arriving

at the loss/profit attributable to shareholders.
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3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Changes in presentation (HKAS 1 — Presentation of
Financial Statements) (Continued)

(iv) Minority interests (HKAS 1 — Presentation of
Financial Statements, and HKAS 27 —
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements)
(Continued)

In order to comply with HKAS 1 and HKAS 27,
minority interests at the balance sheet date are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company, and minority interests
in the results of the Group for the period are
presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss
for the period between the minority interests and
the equity holders of the Company. The presentation
of minority interests in the consolidated income
statement, consolidated balance sheet and statement
of changes in equity for the comparative year has
been restated accordingly.

HKAS 17 — Leases

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings were previously
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss. With effect from 1 April 2005, in order to
comply with HKAS 17, the Group has adopted a new policy
for leasehold land and buildings held for own use. Under
the new policy, the leasehold interest in the land held for
own use is accounted for as being held under an operating
lease where the fair value of the interest in any buildings
situated on the leasehold land could be measured separately
from the fair value of the leasehold interest in the land at
the time the lease was first entered into by the Group or
taken over from the previous lessee, or at the date of
construction of those buildings, if later.
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(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

HKAS 17 — Leases (Continued)

Further details of the new policy are set out in notes 2(h)
and 2(m). Any buildings held for own use which are situated
on such land leases continue to be presented as part of
property, plant and equipment. However, as from 1 April
2005 the buildings are also stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation, rather than at fair value, to be consistent
with the new policy required to be adopted for the land

element.

The effects of the above changes are summarised in notes
3(h) and 3(i) to the financial statements. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of HKAS 17, comparative
amounts on the balance sheets for the year ended 31 March
2005 have been restated to reflect the reclassification of

leasehold land.

Employee share option scheme (HKFRS 2 — Share-
based payment)

In prior years, no amounts were recognised when employees
(which term includes directors) were granted share options
over shares in the company. If the employees chose to
exercise the options, the nominal amount of share capital
and share premium were credited only to the extent of the

option’s exercise price receivable.

With effect from 1 April 2005, in order to comply with
HKFRS 2, the Group has adopted a new policy for employee
share options. Under the new policy, the Group recognises
the fair value of such share options as an expense with a
corresponding increase recognised in a share option reserve
within equity. Further details of the new policy are set out
in note 2(t)(ii).
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3. EFtHEREH (&) 3.  CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) EEBRESS (BEMBHREE (c) Employee share option scheme (HKFRS 2 — Share-
BIZE25% — URBERNAR) (&) based payment) (Continued)
Ve RERKEENER M The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively
EBRBEFTHEET - EAE with comparative restated, except that the group has taken
ERABAVBEHRELERIFE25% advantage of the transitional provisions set out in HKFRS
Fref z @ERX - Bk - BR 2, under which the new recognition and measurement
HEE BRI BEART policies have not been applied to the following grants of
I P 2 B AR AE - options:
(@ MEBER-ZEZE_F+—H (@) all options grants to employees on or before 7
+tHFZAIAEEREZ November 2002; and
EaE R
(b) FAIER-_ZEZE_F+—A (b) all options granted to employees after 7 November
tRZERMEERLEILE 2002 but which had vested before 1 January 2005.

R-_ZEZFTRF—H—HH
5B BRRE o

HERXTEMBREEBE The adjustments for each financial statement line affected
2 38 B R M FE3(h) B 3() © are set out in notes 3(h) and 3()).

BEBRESS 2FBEEHNW Details of the employee share option scheme are set out in
FF31 0 note 31.
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(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Amortisation of positive and negative goodwill (HKFRS

3 — Business combinations, HKAS 36 — Impairment
of assets and HKAS 38 — Intangible assets)

In prior periods:

positive or negative goodwill which arose prior to 1
January 2001 was taken directly to reserves at the
time it arose, and was not recognised in the income
statement until disposal or impairment of the acquired

business;

positive goodwill which arose on or after 1 January
2001 was amortised on a straight line basis over its
useful life and was subject to impairment testing

when there were indications of impairment; and

negative goodwill which arose on or after 1 January
2001 was amortised over the weighted average useful
life of the depreciable/amortisable non-monetary
assets acquired, except to the extent it related to
identified expected future losses as at the date of
acquisition. In such cases it was recognised in the
income statement as those expected losses were

incurred.
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3.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Amortisation of positive and negative goodwill (HKFRS
3 — Business combinations, HKAS 36 — Impairment
of assets and HKAS 38 — Intangible assets) (Continued)

With effect from 1 April 2005, in order to comply with
HKFRS 3, HKAS 36 and HKAS 38, the Group has changed
its accounting policies relating to goodwill. Under the new
policy, the Group no longer amortises positive goodwill
but tests it at least annually for impairment. Also with
effect 1 April 2005 and in accordance with HKFRS 3, HKAS
36 and HKAS 38, if the fair value of the net assets acquired
in a business combination exceeds the consideration paid
(i.e. an amount arises which would have been known as
negative goodwill under the previous accounting policy),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as it
arises. Further details of these new policies are set out in
note 2(e).

The new policy in respect of the amortisation of positive
goodwill has been applied prospectively in accordance with
the transitional arrangements under HKFRS 3. The
adjustments for consolidated financial statement line affect
for the year ended 31 March 2006 are set out in notes
3(h) to 3(i).
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

B

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (HKAS 32 — Financial
instruments: Disclosure and presentation, and HKAS
39 — Financial instruments: Recognition and

measurement)

With effect from 1 April 2005, in order to comply with
HKAS 32 and HKAS 39, the Group has changed its
accounting policies relating to financial instruments to those
as set out in notes 2(f) to (g) and (o) to (r). Further details

of the changes are as follows:

(i) Investments in equity securities

In prior years, equity investments held on a continuing
basis for an identifiable long-term purpose were
classified as investment securities and stated at cost
less provision. Other investments in securities
(including those held for trading and for non-trading
purposes) were stated at fair value with changes in

fair value recognised in profit or loss.

With effect from 1 April 2005, and in accordance
with HKAS 39, all investments, with the exception of
securities held for trading purposes, are classified as
available-for-sale securities and carried at fair value.
Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities are recognised in equity, unless there is
objective evidence that an individual investment has
been impaired. There are no material adjustments
arising from the adoption of the new policies for
securities held for trading purposes. Further details

of the new policies are set out in note 2(f).
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RRERES BEAEBER
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g ERH AT BARE
7 BR(E - ATBRRE
HFREEMRFEER -F
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CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (HKAS 32 — Financial
instruments: Disclosure and presentation, and HKAS
39 — Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement) (Continued)

(ii) Convertible bonds

In prior years, the accounting policies for convertible
bonds issued were stated at its face value.

With effect from 1 April 2005, and in accordance
with HKAS 32 and HKAS 39, convertible bonds issued
are split into their liability and equity components at
initial recognition by recognising the liability
component at its fair value and attributing to the
equity component the difference between the
proceeds from the issue and the fair value of the
liability component. The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible bonds
reserve until the bonds are either converted (in which
case it is transferred to share premium) or the bonds
are redeemed (in which case it is released directly to
retained profits). Further details of the new policy
are set out in note 2(p).

This change was adopted by way of an adjustment
to the opening balance of the convertible bonds,
share premium, convertible bond reserve and the
accumulated losses as at 1 April 2005. Comparative
amounts have not been restated as this is prohibited
by the transitional arrangement in HKAS 39. The
effects of the above changes are summarised in notes
3(h) and 3(i) to the financial statements.
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(9 LAEFBREDHEAFER

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Definition of related parties (HKAS 24 — related party
disclosures)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 24, Related party
disclosures, the definition of related parties as disclosed in
note 2(aa) has been expanded to clarify that related parties
include entities that are under the significant influence of
a related party that is an individual (i.e. key management
personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close family
members) and post-employment benefit plans which are
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group. The clarification of
the definition of related parties has not resulted in any
material changes to the previously reported disclosures of
related party transactions nor has it had any material effect
on the disclosures made in the current period, as compared
to those that would have been reported had Statement of
Standard Accounting Practice 20, related party disclosures,

still been in effect.

The effects of changes in the above accounting policies

BEFEXBEZ2ZENMT described above on the results for the current and
prior year are as follows:

—EEXRE —ETRF

2006 2005

BETT BEF T

HK$’'000 HK$'000

TEHE HELEE Non-amortisation of positive goodwill 3,696 —

BRUBRES Recognition of interests on convertible bonds (5) —
BRARGEANRRBREX Recognition of share based payments

as expenses (41) (2)

AERBRBD, /(M) Decrease/(increase) in loss for the year 3,650 (2)
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3. BIEXRZH @) 3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) ERHERAYBEHREERNER (h) The cumulative effects of the application of the new
—EERE=A=Z+—-HRZ= HKFRSs on 31 March 2005 and 1 April 2005 are
ZERFNA-—HZRAFH® summarised below:

BT :
R=BZLE R=BZLE R-ZZ2LE
=ZB=1+-H EFET=F frAE mA-H
As at 31 BHAE As at 31 Prospective As at
March 2005 Retrospective adjustments March adjustments 1 April

(WRI28)  BAEH  BEE FRUBRE 2005 EEEHER 2005
(as previously ~ ERIE1% ERHHE17F  RHEIR (E5)  #32]%39% (E31)
i50 The Group reported) HKAS 1 HKAS 17 HKFRS 2 (restated) HKAS32&39 (restated)
BEFr BEFr BT EEFr EEFr BEFr BETr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEBEREE  Balance sheet items

R ES Convertible bonds (390) = = = (390) 1 (379)
EtEEFE  Other net assets 89,620 = = = 89,620 = 89,620

HEERBE  Total effects on

LBz E assets and liabilities 89,230 — — — 89,230 11 89,241
i Share capital 232,240 - - 232240 — 2340
23 ER Accumulated losses (410,683) — = 2)  (410,685) (586)  (411,271)
REESEE  Convertible bond

reserve — — — — — 99 99
BRERE Share option reserve — — — 2 2 — 2
Kin (@ Share premium 89,240 — - - 89,240 498 89,738
RN Other reserves 178,433 — — — 178,433 — 178,433

DEREER  Minority interests — — — — — _ _

HRAZBYE  Total effects on equity 89,230 - - - 89,230 11 89,241

DEREER  Minority interests — — — — — _ _

78

== 3 (& @)A R 2 & TIDETIME SUN (GROUP) LIMITED



B BEES (&)

() ERHMEBMBREEAHEX
SER-"ZFTNFEOA-HZ

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

B

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) The financial effects of the application of the new
HKFRSs to the Group’s equity on 1 April 2004 are

BAZHBEZEHMMT summarised as follows:

BEHAR

Retrospective

MA2%H,  adjustments
As BEa R
previously 22 BI 5B 155 As
reported HKAS 1 restated
BT BETF T BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R A Share capital 138,542 — 138,542
Hfth Other reserves (13,680) — (13,680)
DPHRRER Minority interests — 9,596 9,596
Az B2 Total effects on equity 124,862 9,596 134,458

AREFHEREIEMF TS
BB & RIR

ERBME2RARNEE SRR
|izgd - EEECIFEHATHMBR
TCHRSEABEATEZHME - R
ARESEFTEMRFECEERR
BEREEFHENAEZBBARARZ
TERRENGEERA ZHEME B AR
ZAAHEERRBRIIHmMOT -

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies which
are described in note 2, management has made the following
judgments that have significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year, are also discussed below.
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KREREEL AT LEREEZ
BRRUFEZEHEREZRE -

&R E

EEETBRERDRER  AESE
BEZRSELEM 2 EREEEL
st - AT EEREEK - AREA
A ERRAERSELBUIAER
BB RKAESRE - Ut HE
HiME -

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of fixed assets and intangible assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (i) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset or derecognition; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test. The Group determines whether an
asset is impaired at least on an annual basis or where an
indication of impairment exists. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the asset. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the assets and also to choose a suitable discount rate

in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of goodwill

In determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount

rate in order to calculate the present value.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

4,

(LA IE)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of receivables

The policy for impairment on receivables of the Group is based
on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgment. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. If the financial conditions of
debtors of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional

impairment may be required.

Impairment of broadcasting programmes

The policy for impairment on broadcasting programmes of the
Group is based on the evaluation of markets conditions and on
management's judgment. A considerable amount of judgment is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of the assets,
including the current market conditions and the past history of

each program.

Valuation of investment in securities

All financial securities are recognised initially at fair value. The
fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is
normally the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received. Fair values of investments in
securities measured at fair value that are quoted in active markets
are based on bid prices for assets held and offer prices for
liabilities. When independent prices are not available, fair values
are determined by using valuation techniques which refer to
observable market data. These include comparison with similar
instruments where market observable prices exist and appropriate

valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Valuation of investment in securities (Continued)

The main factors which management considers are included (i)
the likelihood and expected timing of future cash flows on the
securities. These cash flows are usually governed by the terms of
the securities, although management judgement may be required
in situations where the ability of the counterparty to service the
securities in accordance with the contractual terms is in doubt;
and (ii) an appropriate discount rate for the securities.
Management determines this rate, based on its assessment of
the appropriate spread of the rate for the securities over the
risk-free rate. When valuing securities by reference to comparable
instruments, management takes into account the maturity,
structure and rating of the instrument with which the position
held is being compared.

Changes in their fair value of trading securities directly impact
the Group's income statement in the period in which they occur.
Change in their fair value of available-for-sale securities is
recorded directly in equity until the securities are sold, at which
point the cumulative change in fair value is charged or credited
to the income statement. For those securities classified as
available-for-sale, consideration as to whether any such assets
should be written down to reflect an impairment is taken into
account in the fair value of the relevant security. Any impairment
in the value of available-for-sale securities held as available-for-
sale is reported in the income statement and hence reduces the
Group's profit for the period.

Taxation

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily
involves judgement regarding the future financial performance
of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred
tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors are also
evaluated in considering whether there is convincing evidence
that it is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax
assets will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable
temporary differences, group relief, tax planning strategies and
the periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The
carrying amount of deferred taxation and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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(A& % 5I{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
EEE 5.  TURNOVER
—EERE “TTRF
2006 2005
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BREEL Broadcasting business
— BESBZERA  — Broadcasting programme production income 26,223 24,669
— DIHET B MR — sub-licensing of programme rights — 108
26,223 24,777
iR R EEEB Publishing and trading business
— HESHEBEm — sales of multi-media products 24,909 5,393
51,132 30,170
Hib W zs & WA F 6. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME
—eeAE  -TTEA
2006 2005
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
H At & Other revenue
RITERZFERA Interest income from bank deposits 104 33
H A2 A B A Interest income from others 1,000 —
MERE2ME WA Rental income from leasing of motor vehicles 182 —
Hit Others 665 43
1,951 76
Hisg A/ (B518) B% Other net income/(loss)
HEBRAEEEZER Loss on disposals of fixed assets (680) (4,445)
BATEIKEER Net realised and unrealised gains on trading
FHBEBER securities carried at fair value
BT 6,140 487
AIEE S DB 2 EREL  Loss arising from guarantee to
Z &1 (KfaE37(e)) an ex-associate (note 37(e)) (2,717) —
2,743 (3,958)
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7. BREAEE 7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
BRELATESIBE B (GFA) - Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
—EEXE ZZTTARF
2006 2005
(Z71)
(restated)
BYFTT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
(a) WEMAK (a) Finance costs
AmkERZHE Interest on convertible bonds 5 —
ARAFAEH Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable
B8 2 RITIEEFE within five years 6 64
MEMEAEL Finance charges on obligations under
MEER finance leases 29 24
40 88
(b) EIMAK (b) Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
(BEEEH)
Bk tERE A Share option benefit 41 2
RRAE T ET Bl R Retirement benefit scheme contributions 310 557
e IERHAMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 11,420 11,729
11,771 12,288
() HERTBLZEAFE () Netloss/(gain) arising on disposals
MWEBARMEEZ and deconsolidation of subsidiaries
BE (kR 38
HEWB AR Loss/(gain) on disposals of subsidiaries
BR/ (W) 265 (416)
HEFGatENE Loss on disposals of unconsolidated subsidiary
NAEIZEE — 4,265
TEEETENE Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries
na 2 Woas — (114,115)
265 (110,266)
(d) HfEE (d) Other items
FAHEREAZEA Cost of purchased programme rights included
B B 1 MR R AN in cost of sales — 1,808
ZERT & Auditors’ remuneration
— KEE — current year 300 400
— BAFERETE — under-provision in prior year — 104
ME - WERREIWE  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
— RERENRS — assets held under finance leases
REZEE 213 97
— RELEHRE — assets held under operating leases
RAEZEE 20 —
— HEHMEE — other assets 6,546 5,426
M E £ 30 % (B 4 8 Amortisation of leasehold land premium 7 36
MEZKEHREER Operating lease charges in respect of property
He: xEHE:2 rentals: minimum lease payments 2,624 2,237
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(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. INCOME TAX

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents:

S LI
2006 2005
BETT BETFT
HK$°000 HK3$'000

BB IR
AFEEHA

Current tax
Tax for the year

mﬁ$ﬁlﬁﬁi_727¢
R—_FEFEHAF=H=+—H
EEﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmmﬂ'W
e A 4 B 7S R AE BB A
SHEE HtwERAFEE
ZERBRENHECEHAEH
REMERZERZERB
R WREZFHERZREE
Bl mEREMFE -

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in
the financial statements as the Group has no estimated
assessable profits for the years ended 31 March 2006 and
2005. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the applicable rates of prevailing in the
jurisdiction in which the Group operates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof
during the year.

REXHERBABERIHEZ (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
SEBRZHEROT ! loss at applicable tax rates:
—EEXRE “TTARF
2006 2005
(&%)
(restated)
BE TR EETF T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BRHAEE Loss before taxation (36,510) (178,579)
BRABEZLERE Notional tax on loss before tax, calculated

BEBRERNZER at the rates applicable to profits in the

WA ZERR R E tax jurisdictions concerned (6,389) (31,251)
MRSt BBy E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 8,777 6,136
AR R BT 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (4,311) (38)
ﬂﬁ IRDANEESR &ﬁﬁt Tax effect of unused tax losses and other

BT BEELRBYE deferred tax assets not recognised 2,615 27,900

HRANERRATEER Utilisation of tax loss not previously recognised (23) —

AR ZBERAAMEZYE  Efect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions (168) (60)
Eiﬁﬁ Others (501) (2,687)
ERBEZH Actual tax expense - -
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R ¥ R S Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA TIE)

9.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEME 9.

BEBB LRI E161EHBEZE
EMemT

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

—EERE —ETERF

2006 2005

(&51)

(restated)

BETT BEF T

HK$’000 HK$'000

we Fees 374 348
e R H A M Salaries and other emoluments 3,306 2,587
EEERERT Employee share option benefit 41 2
RINEFFT B Retirement benefit scheme contributions 24 29
3,745 2,966

o —REFERBREAREBEAR
RNERD c ZFBEFENR _TTNF=
A=+ AZERHRRAKRITEZRE
BEFBENR T XMEINRESTERE

EWE -

RNERMEFER > AEEGERSE
E R RS p0 A AR 5 [ 7 S AN AEf] 3R
BN BAMEFEER - SIEERE
ENEXRBREEAFI 2 25 -

In addition, a director was granted options to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Details of the share options granted and
outstanding in respect of this director as at 31 March 2006 are
disclosed in note 31 below and in the directors’ report.

There was no amount paid during the both years to the directors
in connection with their retirement from employment with the
Group or inducement to join. There was no any arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the both years.

—BEXRE Year 2006
ek EEk RIKER
H At 57 A REER THEIft R
Salaries Employee  Retirement
and share benefit
we other option scheme @t
e Name Fees emoluments benefit contributions Total
BEFT BETFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
HTES Executive director
B Chen Ping — 1,170 — 12 1,182
SRE Ma Jian Ying — 780 - 12 792
Stasyshyn Walter Stephen  Stasyshyn Walter Stephen — 576 — — 576
E: Man Ming - — — — —
B Tung Hsiao Chi - 780 41 — 821
R Yang Lan
(R=ZTH%E (resigned on 6/12/2005)
TR BEHE) — - - - —
1 3% Ke Lin
(R=—Z2EREF (resigned on 22/4/2005)
MA=+—HEHT) — — - - —
BUEBITES Independent
non-executive director
KB Chu Yu Lin, David 120 - - - 120
BEE Yan Tat Wah, Joseph 120 — - - 120
B & m Deng Jordan Z. 63 — - - 63
REE Woo Chia Wei
(R=—ZEREF (resigned on 5/11/2005)
T—ARAET) 7 - - - 71
374 3,306 4 24 3,745
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9. EEME (©) 9.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
—ETRE Year 2005
Fe kM EEME RINEH
gl R SEMER
Salaries Employee Retirement
and share benefit
Hne other option scheme B
e Name Fees  emoluments benefit  contributions Total
BEFT BETT EEFT BETT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HOTES Executive director
B Chen Ping — 477 — 4 481
SRR Ma Jian Ying — 318 — 4 322
Stasyshyn Walter Stephen  Stasyshyn Walter Stephen — 193 — — 193
X Man Ming — — — — —
B/ Tung Hsiao Chi — 88 2 — 90
R Yang Lan - 764 — 7 771
T % Ke Lin = = = = =
RIE Wu Zheng Bruno
(R=ZEWEF (resigned on 8/12/2004)
TZANBEE) — 187 — 7 194
¥ Li John Zongyang
(R=ZEWEF (resigned on 8/12/2004)
TZANBEE) — 560 — 7 567
BYFHTES Independent
non-executive director
Nl Chu Yu, Lin, David 60 — — — 60
HEE Yan Tat Wah, Joseph 147 — — — 147
B Deng Jordan Z. 3 — — — 3
REE Woo Chia Wei 51 — — — 51
a9 Yuen Kon Ming Jason
(N=—ZEEMEF (resigned on 30/9/2004)
NA=1RBEH) 87 — — — 87
348 2,587 2 29 2,966
10. REHF AL 10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
TE&EmFHATH  HE(ZTEZH Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2005:
F UR)AES  EME D RNME four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9.
T - SR (ZZTETHEF  —F) The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other one
AT BEOT . (2005: one) individual are as follows:
—EEREF —ETREF
2006 2005
EBEFIT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
5o REH Salaries and other emoluments 672 397
RINEFFT B3R Retirement benefit scheme contributions 12 12
684 409
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R ¥ R S Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ¥ %5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10. BEFAL (&) 10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
HHp B (CEZERF . —F)Ea% The emoluments of the remaining one (2005: one) individual
ATZBMENTFUATEHE : with the highest emoluments are within the following band:

AE
No. of individuals

—EBEXRE “ZThEF

2006 2005

AT T E4%1,000,0007T HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 1 1

M. ARAEEZHBEAEBLER 11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

AAvERRFEARBGREBESRE The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the

/518 8 # 38,453,000 (TR F Company includes a loss of HK$38,453,000 (2005 (restated):

(£%)) : #¥174,528,0007T) * ZE HK$174,528,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
BERARRZHBERERE - statements of the Company.

12. BREBE 12. LOSS PER SHARE

() BREXEBR (a) Basic loss per share
EREXRNEBEEDIRBEAZEE 2 The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
% R FE /&5 18 % % 36,510,0007T Group's loss attributable to shareholders of HK$36,510,000
(ZZETRF(FY) : B (2005 (restated): HK$177,040,000) and the weighted
177,040,0007T) R FNE %17 average of 490,533,000 ordinary shares (2005 (restated):
38 IR A0 T 159 $0490,533,000 355,851,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.
REBR(ZEZTHF (FY)
355,851,000A8 & @A) 5+ &

(b) SRBEER (b) Diluted loss per share

HE_ZTZERFR_ZTZTLEF
=A=+t—HLEFEAR XA
Al 2 @R T B R B A
ZITEE MREBEE_ZTZTH
FR-IZBZERF=ZA=+—H
IEFEER - TEABEEEY
g TEak-

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 March 2005 and 2006, as the
historical market prices of the Company’s shares were below
the exercise prices of the share options during the years
ended 31 March 2006 and 2005.
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13.

BERKEF

ARRREBENBRRRETER
HIE AT EG - REENEE
BEGEITZEERLAFEATER
sHE ([REEFEll) - wEEET)
BB XFEAEE 2 E R FRKG
g - RiIEwESHE BT REES
HBARRESHBYMAZ5%MBE
EFFEIMER M - EEAEBEKRAL
PR /378 % 20,0007T ° tIEET 8] 2 K
B SRERMA °

BRIERESHE  FAAGRANRER
M 2 R KAE F B AN 3Z 78 #5204,000
T (ZZEZTRF : B%220,0007T) °

AEBRF R (FBERIN 2B A A
ZHEBBEETRF RN 2 ERKREE
2 WERZETEZ18%E22%F

RIE LGS BERERKERZ
BRARBHETEARAFEIEEAX
- MBEESFERHFKI - AEEL
BEMER

FER - AEBRBEPBEKRESETEE
2 AR EE = B 106,000 (==
T FHE : #EEE337,0000T) ©

&R B RS A E AL W AR B
BRMRKERN 258 -

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

13.

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries operate Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF schemes”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. the MPF schemes are defined
contribution retirement schemes administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF schemes, the employers and employees
are each required to make contributions to the MPF schemes at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to the

schemes vest immediately.

The retirement benefits costs under the MPF schemes charged
to the consolidated income statement amounted to HK$204,000
(2005: HK$220,000) during the year.

The subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC other than Hong Kong
participate in pension schemes organised by the respective
municipal governments whereby they are required to pay annual
contributions at the rates ranging from 18% to 22% of the
standard wages determined by the relevant authorities in the
PRC.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing and
retired employees are payable by the relevant PRC scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations beyond

the annual contributions.

The aggregate employers’ contributions by the Group under the
PRC pension schemes amounted to HK$106,000 (2005:
HK$337,000) during the year.

The Group does not operate any other scheme for retirement

benefits provided to the Group's employees.
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14.

THEER 14.

DHRERIRANEE 2 X1 kiR D 1A
25 REBREEAEXB D EERE
REBRELATTHREREEI AR
SEZANIH RS -

ES ok
AEEBEEEREREE DA -

R ¥ R S Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ¥ %5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because
this is more relevant to the Group's internal financial reporting.

Business segments

The Group comprises broadcasting and publishing business
segment.

¥ Results
HiRRZEE
EmEE
BERABHE Publishing and
Broadcasting and multi-media me
content production product trading Consolidated
ZEERE —TERF ZEEXNF _ETHF ZSERE —_TTRHF
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
(Z%1) (Z51) (Z%1)
(restated) (restated) (restated)
BEFT EBEFTT BEFT BETrT BETFT BETL
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
NEEED Segment turnover
— HINHE — External sales 26,223 24,777 24,909 5,393 51,132 30,170
ke Segment results (9,694) (64,380) (22,372) (22,609)  (32,066)  (86,989)
AOBEE Unallocated operating
WA KRS income and expenses (4,139)  (62,034)
KEEE Loss from operations (36,205) (149,023)
BMEKA Finance costs (40) (88)
HERTHE ,v?/u\ Net (loss) / gain arising on
FENBR disposals and
FﬁF’BEZ (Eﬂﬁ) deconsolidation of
Ve &) subsidiaries (265) 82,221 — 28,045 (265) 110,266
€ J?/u\qu”ﬁ Impairment losses on
B3 B 2 8] 3R amounts due from
ZREERE unconsolidated
subsidiaries — (85,018) — (52,796) —  (137,814)
& It & 1 ) Impairment losses on
AT ZEEEE  amounts due from associates — (1,870)
7 6Bt & /2 7] % 48 Share of results of associates — (50)

L] Taxation

AEEER Loss for the year

(36,510) (178,579)
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14. 2 BER (&)

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements
(54 7 ¥ 51 {8)

BEEAEX Balance sheet
HiRRZEE
EmEE
BEERABRE Publishing and
Broadcasting and multi-media me
content production product trading Consolidated
“EEXRE _TTHE ZBEXF _TTHF ZBERE _TTRF
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
BEFTH BETrT E¥FT BETrT BETT EETL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
NEEE Segment assets 49,737 46,959 32,392 55,241 82,129 102,200
REEENE Interests in associates
s — — — — — —
AOBEEE  Unallocated corporate
BE assets 60,950 51,388
143,079 153,588
SEAEE Segment liabilities 58,579 53,064 8,570 1,889 67,149 54,953
AABEE  Unallocated corporate
BfE liabilities 8,625 9,405

75,774 64,358
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(LA ¥ %5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. 2 EER (&) 14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Ht &R Other information
RS 5EE
EREE
BEERAREAE Publishing and
Broadcasting and multi-media 7B g4
content production product trading Unallocated Consolidated
ZEEXRE -“2TRF CZBERE -“TTHF CZBEXRE —TTHE CZBERE —TThf
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
(&31) (&31) (E31)
(restated) (restated) (restated)

A¥Fr  BEETT ERTn  ERETT BRTn  EETL  ERTn BRI
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

EE&E  Additions of
nE fixed assets 1,312 2,226 8 79 — — 1,320 2,305
Mm% - #aER Depreciation of
REWE  property, plant
and equipment 1,294 2,352 5,482 3,171 3 — 6,779 5,523
MELH  Amortisation of
HEZE  leasehold land
premium - — - — 7 36 7 36
RIZE (BE) (Reversal of)
FEBE  impairment
losses for bad
and doubtful

debts (48) 20,330 230 792 (2,542) 1,500 (2,360) 22,622
HEZHE  Impairment losses
B on inventories — 5,138 — 8,693 — — — 13,831
BEHE  Amortisation of
goodwill — 2,749 — 2,382 — — — 5,131

EEEEZ  Impairment
HEEE  losses on

broadcasting
programmes 5,297 — — — — — 5,297 —
[k Impairment
MEEE  losses on
goodwill - 13,748 21,622 8,686 - — 21,622 22,434
AftHE  Impairment
BHL losses on
HEEE  available-
for-sale
securities — 7,131 — — — 44,833 — 51,964

WEETAE (Gain)Loss on
2 (W) disposals of
/E#B fixed assets 1,980 4,355 20 90 (1,320) — 680 4,445
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14. 2 BER (&) 14,

& D8

TEEY/REZ KR - AR E
mGE Dz AR B DRI

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segments

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue

by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/

T services:
—EERE —EERF
2006 2005
(E75))
(restated)
HK$'000 HK$'000

EHMETSE S ¢ By geographical market:

BB Hong Kong 15,197 48
HBIARRE ([FE) Mainland China (“PRC") 35,099 30,122
EHEBAREH United States of America 836 —
51,132 30,170

REEMEMWE S Z O BEERAEE
REEEERBEZANEAT :

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment

assets and additions to fixed assets, by the geographical area in

which the assets are located:

STEEEREME BEEERE

Carrying amount of Additions to

segment assets fixed assets
—EEXRE ZITTRE ZCZEBERFE ZTITRF
2006 2005 2006 2005
EBEFT BT T EBE T EETF T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
B8 Hong Kong 90,566 108,594 26 1,182
R PRC 52,513 44,743 1,294 1,123
=0 Taiwan — 251 — —
143,079 153,588 1,320 2,305
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(A% 5|{8) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15. BIEEE 15. FIXED ASSETS

AEE The Group

BERKE GARZEE
RENEER Plant  Furniture RE Mt BELH

BF  Leasehold and and Motor sub-  Leasehold h)
Buildings improvements  machinery fixtures vehicles total land Total

ARTT  EEFL  RRTT  ARTn ERTn EEFn BRTn AETR
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

BA: Cost:
RZZEIME At 1 April 2004, restated
mA—R - 55l 1,617 6,971 24,263 14,539 5,494 52,884 4,089 56,973
A% Exchange adjustment = = = = - — — —
RE Additions
— ERNENRBAR — through acquisition of
subsidiaries - 5,750 16,249 851 — 22,850 - 22,850
— ERERkRE — through transfer from
SEHBAR unconsolidated subsidiaries — — — 4,254 3,295 7,549 = 7,549
—Ett — others - - 1,145 - 1,160 2,305 - 2305
HE Disposals
— ERHENBAR — through disposal
of subsidiaries — (187) (12,678) (5,940) (3,295) (22,100) — (22,100)
— EBHERRS — through disposal of
HENBAE unconsolidated
subsidiary — — (2.141) (1,177) (94) (3.412) — (3.412)
— EBTEES — through deconsolidation
HENEAT of subsidiaries - (2,584) - (4,254) (3295  (10,133) - (10,133)
—Hft — others — — (6,390) (3,863) (1,550) (11,803) — (11,803)
RZZERE=F=+-H At 31 March 2005 and
k=2ZRFNA-R" 1 April 2005, restated 1,617 9,950 20,448 4410 1,715 38,140 4,089 42,229
]
EfAE Exchange adjustments - - 102 6 3 11 - 11
NE Additions - - 1,286 34 — 1,320 - 1,320
ik Disposals
— BBLENBAE — through disposal
of subsidiaries — (87) (470) (34) — (591) — (591)
—Hft — Others (1,617) (4.114) (534) (1,424) (312) (8,001) (4,089) (12,090)
RZZFZRE=A=T—H At 31 March 2006 — 5,749 20,832 2,992 1,406 30,979 — 30,979
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(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15. BIEEE (&) 15.  FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

REER (5£) The Group (Continued)

BERKE GARZEE
RENEER Plant  Furniture RE Nt BELH#

BT  Leasehold and and Motor sub-  Leasehold @it
Buildings improvements  machinery fixtures vehicles total and Total

ERTr  ERFL  RETT  RRTn ERTn ERFn BETT ARTR
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

BRERWE Aggregate depreciation
and impairment:
RZZEWFWE—HB - At 1 Aprl 2004, restated

EZi 1,212 4,222 12,176 7,189 2,124 26,923 2,739 29,662
EREEEGATE Through transfer from
HWELR unconsolidated subsidiaries = = — 2,142 1,116 3,258 = 3,258
EiAE Exchange adjustment — = = - - - — _
REERH Charge for the year 3 1,35 2,834 840 470 5,523 36 5,559
iH E Rl Eliminate on disposals
—BALENBAF — through disposals
of subsidiaries — (83) (6,847) (3,213) (1374) (11,517) — (11,517)
— EBMEERS — through disposal of
HERBAR unconsolidated
subsidiary - — (978) (429) (10) (1,417) - (1.417)
— BRTERA — through deconsolidation
HENBAA of subsidiaries - (2,344) - (2,142) (1,116) (5,602) = (5,602)
—Hfg — others — — 3.717) 2172) (727) (6,616) — (6,616)
iy

TEREZA=+—H At31 March 2005 and

TTREMA—H 1 April 2005, restated
EL] 1,235 3,151 3,468 2,215 483 10,552 2,175 13,327
EiAE Exchange adjustments - - 47 3 1 51 — 51
AEERH Charge for the year 3 2,452 3,638 443 w3 6,779 7 6,786
it E Rl Eliminated on disposals
— BRHENBLE — through disposal
of subsidiaries — (82) (296) — — (378) — (378)
—Hft — others (1,238) (2,188) (377) (1,405) (312) (5,520) (2,782) (8,302)
AEEE Impairment loss = = 50 1,024 62 1,136 = 1,136
RZEEAF=F=T—H At 31 March 2006 - 3,333 6,530 2,280 477 12,620 — 12,620
REFE ! Net book value:
RZEEAF=A=T—H At 31 March 2006 — 2,416 14,302 112 929 18,359 — 18,359
RZZER%E At 31 March 2005, restated
ZA=1+-8 &} 382 6,799 16,980 2,195 1,232 27,588 1314 28,902
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(RE 5 {E)

15. B &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE (#)

TEE (F)

(a)

ff 5t -

REREEEREZEEEE

AEERBER_FTNFRARERZ
MEHEHERAIE REEHER
% AEEEREEREEEREER
ZEAE HEYESEXARE -

MR_BEEXE=ZA=+—H &~&£H
BERERERAEZIEZRETEE
AEEES851,000L (ZZTRF + B
1,063,0007T) °

REQKEHEHLZEEEE

AEERBRLEEEHEAE  ZF
HERSH—F YESExABEE -
R EMERIGE - AEARERS
HEXNZ2HHED -

RZZEZRF=RA=1+—H  A5H
RIFEERERE 2 REZREFE
778 % 78,0007T °

EE & EZRERBR

RBE-ZZERF=A=+—HLF
ER - AEBEEEEDHEETEEE
Z AW EFRIR o RIFUAEE - BEA
B Z BREEMURE#1,136,0007T © A
W EsRIAE R B E R EERE S AN
EE - MEEBEENETESRE
EEERNAFHBAALEZHREAS
AR REFRIARERX10%
#T o  REEHFETEHRBEEEE
ZHERERER  DREBEHEZ
HHERENET KREZERE
NMNERBEERAMEEBHMHH
‘R2IEHREE -

15.

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Fixed assets held under finance leases

The Group leases motor vehicles under finance leases expiring in May
2009. At the end of the lease term the Group has the option to
purchase the motor vehicles at a price deemed to be a bargain
purchase option. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

At 31 March 2006, the net book value of motor vehicles under finance
leases of the Group was HK$851,000 (2005: HK$1,063,000).

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out motor vehicles under operating leases. The
leases run for a period of one year. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals. At the inception of the operating lease, the leasee
made full payments under the operating lease.

At 31 March 2006, the net book value of motor vehicles held under
the operating leases of the Group was HK$78,000.

Impairment losses on fixed assets

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the management of the Group
assessed the recoverable amounts of the fixed assets. Based on this
assessment, the carrying amount of the fixed assets was written down
by HK$1,136,000. The recoverable amounts have been determined
on the basis of value in use calculations. All value in use calculations
use cash flow projections based on the financial budgets approved
by the management cover a 5-year period, and a discount rate of
10%. Cash flow projections during the budget period for the fixed
assets are based on the expected gross margins during the budget
period. Budgeted gross margins have been determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.
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16. BIEEE

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

r5H
The Group
BAZEHAE
EmRE
EBRZME Purchased
Copyright programme et
of book titles rights Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEZWNFNA— El At 1 April 2004 — 16,658 16,658
TBEGETERBA Deconsolidation of a subsidiary — (4,700) (4,700)
ﬁ’ﬁilﬁ?é\.ﬁr’gﬂﬁ% Disposal of unconsolidated subsidiary — (10,150) (10,150)
BN EmA RS ﬁ?ﬂ["% Amortization and charge to the
consolidated income statement — (1,808) (1,808)
RZIEZT ﬂ¢ A=+—H At 31 March 2005 and 1 April 2005
r—ZEERFN )EJ El — — —
BRKE-FRHRBL Additions through acquisition of
mAE (/fﬁiﬂz(a)) a subsidiary (note 32(a)) 841 — 841
RZFEZRF=A=+—H At31 March 2006 841 — 841
EEZMEDHEEAHFER A The copyright of book titles is amortised on a straight-line basis
B NERERAEGGIFERAFHE over its estimated useful life from the date when the assets are
8 ° available for use.
fEA 80 B R IR B s A 5t The purchased programme rights is charged to the consolidated
H & 2 B OX B & A& 5T Al A 4 8 income statement over the shorter of the license period or over
(AREERE) BiEE WA Kb - the estimated number of future showings and the estimated
useful lives.
17. RB LRI ZRE 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
¥ NN
The Company
—EERE “TTRF
2006 2005
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEETRA - AR Unlisted shares, at cost 59,499 55,484
B OREEE Less: Impairment losses (23,212) —
36,287 55,484
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(A E®HIE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17. RMIB AR ZRE (&)

TREHFATZHAKER_ZTETX
FZA=+—HZEE EEXAR
BREEZMNBARFE -BmAM
BRSN - BRI BB S E B - FiE
ZEMBRARERZERKNE QA

(E&RME2() » XELELREFTAR
EEZMERE °
ML K
&5
Place of

rAER

incorporation

Name of company

and operation

ERFREGERABEEARAT  PEARANE
(IBrEE]) (TR El)

(MBIt RELRXEE
RARAR]) (BE)

People’s Republic
of China ("PRC")

(Note i)
XHNRBERAF BB
Evergain Properties Limited Hong Kong
meREAR A ik
Mega Bonus Investments Hong Kong
Limited
Profit Trade Developments RERAHE([RE
Limited (“Profit Trade”) REHE]) /BE
British Virgin
slands (“BVI")/
Hong Kong
AR ERERBE e
BRRA (K i) PRC

Shanghai New Culture TV
and Radio Making
Co., Ltd. (Note ii)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the result, assets or liabilities of the
Group at 31 March 2006. The class of shares held is ordinary
unless otherwise stated. All of these are controlled subsidiaries
as defined under note 2(c) and have been consolidated in the
Group's financial statements.
BERELA BRTRMR
Proportion of EERRAE/
ownership interest afEx
HARE HmAAR Issued and
ERKE L] H fully paid
Group's held AREE ordinary FEE£¥
effective by the held by share capital/  Principal
holding  Company subsidiaries registered capital  activity
100% 100% AR%1,000000 iR
RMB1,000,000  Publication
100% 100% #0000 EEEE
HK$10,000  Inactive
100% — B¥T  REBRK
HK$2  Investment holding
100% 100% 1%t REER
US$1  Investment holding
48% 48% AR¥5,000000r EEEEHER
RMB5,000,000 HESRBER
Production of
broadcasting
programmes

and sales of multi-
media products
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17. RMBRARIZRE (8) 17.
AL R mEgEE
TE BEREE
Place of Group's
NRAER incorporation effective
Name of company and operation holding
STR Media Limited ABRLNE/BE 80%
BVI/
Hong Kong
Sun Television Cybernetworks ~ RBRZHE/FE 100%
Developments Limited BVI/Hong Kong
Sun Television New Media ABRLHE/EE  100%
Limited BVI/Hong Kong
Sun Television Group Limited ~ EBRZEE/FE 100%
BVI/Hong Kong
REMEREGEN e 100%
ARAT(182]) (Bitikiv) PRC
Tianjin City Hai Jin Audio-
Video Distribution Co.,
Ltd. ("Hai Jin") (Note i and iv)
REEHAEBERAA A/ hE 100%
Tidetime Future Optical Hong Kong/
Media Technology Limited PRC
Treasurepoint Limited EBRIES /AR 100%

BVI/Hong Kong

BRELD
Proportion of
ownership interest

HAAH
2]
held

by the

(LA IE)

BB
INCIE-]
held by

Company subsidiaries

100%

100%

80%

100%

100%

100%

100%

BRTRAR
EERRAE/
dMEX

Issued and

fully paid
ordinary

share capital/
registered capital

100% 7T
Us$100

1%
Us$1

Es
Uss1

1,0005% 7.
US$1,000

AE#1,000,0007C

RMB1,000,000

7 810,0007
HK$10,000

(ES
US§1

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

IERH
Principal
activity

REBK

Investment holding

RERHENE
Provision and sale of
programmes

EEER
Broadband
development

RERK

Investment holding

BERZEYEER

Wholesale and retail
of audio-video
products

RERHESREER

Production and sales
of multi-media
products

REREEER

Inactive during the year
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(RE 5 {E)

18.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17. ARB QB Z2RE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

HiaE - Notes:

() FEERAERDAENALERSKE (i) The equity interest is held by individual nominees on behalf of the

ARKTARHE - Company.
F% ¢ 1Bl & K8 E Ty AR 1 P B A il 7 i F% ¥[8 2 and Hai Jin registered under the laws of the PRC as limited
BBEREERR YAFTEEALE liability company and owned legally by PRC nationals. Due to the
ERE c ARAIEERA  ARBE] various agreements in place, in the opinion of the directors of the
N EZERE  MARAREHZRELE Company, the Company has effective control over the operational
A R TS BUR S BRI and financial policies of these enterprises and therefore these
i 52 & 1 F 75 A bt 8 WS B B e 4 51 enterprises have been included as subsidiaries of the Company since
ERRABI 2B AT ° their date of acquisition.

(i) WEAPBDEAIZMATRINEERE - (i) Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign equity joint

venture.

iy RBEZTZZAF=A=+—HILF (i) Upon disposals of the properties during the year 31 March 2006,
B kFMEERATREEMEE Evergain Properties Limited became inactive and the Group has applied
Tma s  WAKEE BEBUEE R for deregister of this subsidiary.

BAR -

(iv), BRER—AAEFMNA+HRK @ [l (iv)  Hai Jin was established on 10 April 1997 to be operated for 10 years
KEE-_TTLFWA+H - BET up to 10 April 2007. At 31 March 2006 and up to the date of
Fo-RZBEERNF=-A=+—HBEKH authorisation for issue of the financial statements, the Group has not
FHBREERENERES A5 H applied to the relevant authority of the PRC government for the
WEAFPBEBEFEBE BRBELERE extension of the operating period.

EHf o

RENFIFRE - ZHE QRS EE None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding

BEMARERBZEBIES during the year or at the end of the year.

RIGEFTEWB LR 2R 18. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

rEE
The Group
—EERE —ZETREF
2006 2005
B F T BB FT
HK$'000 HK$'000
DREE/ (AE)FE Share of net assets/(liabilities) — —
M iz EE
P INEIE/ @2 Amounts due from unconsolidated subsidiaries — 143,801
R EZEstE
P PNEIE S Amounts due to unconsolidated subsidiaries - (5,987)
— 137,814
B OREEE Less: Impairment losses — (137,814)
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(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. NEHZETEMHMBE AT 2 18. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(&)

(a) FIRETEHBALR (a) Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
R-_EETRF=ZA=+—H" At 31 March 2005, details of the Unconsolidated
A EMB AR ZFBW Subsidiaries are as follows:
=

BEELA BETRAR
Proportion of EBRRE/
ownership interest EMER
AL R HAZE @HEAAF Issued and
B ERER BH H b B fully paid
Place of Group's  heldby 2AREE ordinary FE£%
AL incorporation effective the heldby  share capital/  Principal
Name of company and operation holding  Company subsidiaries registered capital  activity
ABEEEERAR  PHE 100% — 100% ARM1,000000 REER
PRC RMB1,000,000  Investment holding
tRBGREEES e 100% - 100% 500,000%7T REEERBRE
BRAR PRC US$500,000  Provision of advertising

agency services

BMEEHEE H 90% — 90%  3,300000%7T BEHBERR
BRAE (Ka) PRC US$3,300,000 LERERRSB
(Note i) Production of digital

transmissions and
multi-media

development services

ERRXZHEAE  TE 100% - 70% ARK®%2,000000T AHERHEEEF
ARAF PRC RMB2,000,000  HEE®
(I=x#E]) (Kii) Distribution and sales of

Beijing Jingwen licensed educational
Multi-media Education products

Company Limited
("Jingwen Education”)

(Note i)
ERESERD 6 100% - 100% BE1000m  REERK
Billion Idea Advertlsmg Hong Kong HK$1,000  Investment holding
Limited
ERERUBARLRA BB 60% - 60%  B#100000m BEER
SilkOnNet.com Hong Kong HK$100,000  Investment holding

Company Limited
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(A% 5|{8) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
18. REGZEFTEM B AT 22 18. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(&)
() FFEFTEHMBLR (&) (a) Unconsolidated Subsidiaries (Continued)
BRELS BRTRAR
Proportion of EBRRE/
ownership interest EMER
AR BRI R HARE MAAR Issued and
Rewy BERKE ®E H i fully paid
Place of Group's  heldby 2AREE ordinary FE£%
ACEE incorporation effective the held by share capital/  Principal
Name of company and operation holding  Company subsidiaries registered capital  activity
Bratyasiris FE 100% - 100% B¥ur EEeX
SERRAA Hong Kong HK$2  Dormant
Sun Century Programs
Production &
Distribution
Group Limited
BrEXEREERAR FE 100% — 100% At EEEX
Sun Enterprise Hong Kong HK$2  Dormant
Marketing Limited
BAREERARLRA REBRIES 100% — 100% XL REBR
Sun Entertainment BV US$1  Investment holding
Television Limited
BRREER (FE) B 100% - 100% A¥ur EEeX
ARAR Hong Kong HK$2  Dormant
Sun Entertainment
Television (Hong Kong)
Limited
Sun International RERNES 100% - 100% 1%t REZER
Marketing & BVI US$T  Investment holding
Distribution Limited
Sun Nominees Limited &% 100% — 100% AT EEEX
Hong Kong HK$2  Dormant
BrERERERAR ZBRERHES/HE  100% 100% — 1ET REER
Sun Publishing BVI/PRC US$T  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
BRI TEER &b 100% — 100% At EEEX
BRAT Hong Kong HK$2  Dormant
Sun Television
Marketing &
Sales Limited
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18. RIGEFTEMBAT 2R

(%)

(a)

FEATENBAR ()

et -

(i)  RIEPBEDEGI M AR K
ZHIREBERE -

(i) RWXKRETIREPBEED M
REREMERR - LAHPEHE
ALTRERE - kAR
TIARZEPEEALREAT
KA -

REBEZE-_ZEZEF=RA=1+—
HIEFE  AEEBER_ZZ
TEMAB-—BHEFEEHE
MEBAGR - RHEER  A&E
BOEDERE A EWE R AT
BBRR 2 G HITEEER - IR
EERSEGEEHENBE AR
HE-_ZTTHAF=R=+—H
ItFEEZEMMBER - EF
RE - BEEME @ FEEET
EWBARIEE-_STWFN
R—RBERBTBEREFTAGZEHN
BHREN -REBEE_ZTRF
ZA=+—HILFE  &H&ekK
mARANTNBESFTEMNBERA
W REWELR A T E IS
AR Z A Y E FRIAEE D Al
#4575 %114,115,0007C & 478
#137,814,0007C °

ARAREFERE ASHETE
FRFGAAENBARZH
EANEERAERE RN
BEFLABIRAS B RE
R EE -

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

18.

(LA IE)

INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

Unconsolidated Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign equity
joint venture established in PRC.

(ii) Jingwen Education is registered under the laws of the PRC as
a limited liability company and owned legally by PRC nationals.
The equity interest is held by these PRC nationals on behalf of
the Company.

The Group has disposed of the Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2006 on 1 April 2005.
After the disposals, the Group was no longer able to
exercise its rights as a controlling shareholder of the
Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and was unable to obtain any
financial information of the Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2005. The directors considered
that for accounting purpose the Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
should be deconsolidated from the consolidated financial
statements with effect from 1 April 2004. For the year
ended 31 March 2005, a gain arising on deconsolidation
of subsidiaries and provision for irrecoverable amounts due
from unconsolidated subsidiaries in the consolidated income
statement amounted to approximately HK$114,115,000 and
HK$137,814,000, respectively.

The directors of the Company believe that the Group has
no other material obligations or commitments in the
Unconsolidated Subsidiaries that require either adjustments

to or disclosure in these financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. RIGEFTEMNBAT 2R

(%)

(b)

BERYE

BREARF—HEZ2EMHEB QA
Profit Tradefim $% 5 2 = ([ =
ZT])RZTE=F+=A=
THARIMZZ BRI E ([
%) Profit TradelA X (B 7% #&
10,000,000 T HEARAGHR=F
TNEMA—B#EBG60% K
BRAIEGERE 240%ER
ZHEZEKABRAE-_ZTTN
FAA=+H- -%ZB%® &2Q
AEEHBRRE B RE
BRRTEEGE  MAKE
NELZEHESEBE_STH
FZA=Z+—BLEFEEZEM
AR SRA RS2 30 - Bt
HERLA ST FNA —
BRETHEATALE M BR
ER - WARINEAHEER
E RRZZETRF=A=+
—BZEHEEEEBRARIER
HIEHEEE1,000T - BHE-T
TERF=-A=1+t—HLFE"
mERaRALEHERE
0% = EERFTERSE
20%Em B ERREEED
B #) B ¥ 4,265,0007T K 78
7,131,0007T °

18.

OE:E RIS Notes to the Financial Statements
(B BIE)

INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

SECC

Pursuant to a conditional agreement dated 30 December
2003 (the “Agreement”) entered into between Profit Trade,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Ms. Huang
Ming Fen (“Ms. Huang"”), Profit Trade disposed of 40%
interest in SECC, a 60% owned subsidiary of the Company
at 1 April 2004, at the consideration of HK$10,000,000.
The completion date of such disposal was 30 September
2004. After that date, the Company was unable to exercise
control over the financial and operating decisions of SECC,
and the Group was also not able to access their books and
records together with the supporting documents for the
year ended 31 March 2005. Accordingly, SECC was
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial statements
with effect from 1 April 2004 and was accounted for as an
investment available-for-sale and stated in the consolidated
balance sheet under investments in securities at 31 March
2005 at HK$1,000. For the year ended 31 March 2005,
the loss on disposal of 40% interest in SECC and
impairment loss recognised in respect of 20% interest in
SECC in the consolidated income statement was
approximately HK$4,265,000 and HK$7,131,000,

respectively.
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IFEBIEETDABRER G
HAERFHATZR +FHER
BXd o BFEZBHBHEHGTA

maliaEk e

income statement.

(A& % 5I{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
19. B8 19. GOODWILL
—EERE “TTARF
2006 2005
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Cost:
RUA—HB ' a2k At 1 April, as previously reported 71,081 87,909
B REEB IV E Effect of changes in accounting policies
(it 5t3) (note 3) (16,276) —
ROA—RH - &7 At 1 April, as restated 54,805 87,909
NE Additions
— ERKE BB — through acquisition of a subsidiary
~ Al (Brat32(a) (note 32(a)) 3,184 33,779
HE Disposals
— BEREEFEGS — through disposal of unconsolidated subsidiary
AEHBLRR — (34,873)
— BRTBERE — through deconsolidation of subsidiaries
AT EHE LA — (15,734)
K=A=+—H At 31 March 57,989 71,081
Rt BERRERSE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses:
RO A—H At 1 April 38,710 49,995
BHBEEBIRE Effect of changes in accounting policies
(Ff7t3) (note 3) (16,276) —
22,434 49,995
6 K B ml Written back on disposals
— BRHEHEE — through disposal of unconsolidated subsidiary
AEMBARR — (25,283)
— BRTBEE — through deconsolidation of subsidiaries
AEHB LR — (13,567)
AEEREBE Impairment loss for the year 21,622 22,434
RE Amortisation for the year - 5,131
R=A=+—H At 31 March 44,056 38,710
REE : Carrying amount:
K=A=+—H At 31 March 13,933 32,371
(@) Bz2—_ZEZERF=A=+—H (@) Until 31 March 2005, positive goodwill is recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over its useful life with the
period of not exceeding ten years and the amortisation of

goodwill for each year is included in the consolidated
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19. BHE

(b)

(0)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(&)
RBEE_ZEZERF=A=1+—

BIEEE  ASEEBRECF
HEEB2UKERIE - RIE
il AEZEREAEMRSYE
21,622,0007T ° AJ Y EIFKIEE 1R
BFEEET - JREKRET
BEERBRI0UEETEER
BEE - FEBDREBER
REREBEHMSGER CEH
BE REANBERZREEE
BHEAEBREECEEREEL
Bl - ARBESELABENDR
ZHAWKEIKIE  WARGE
AU BRI 2 B 2 AR
gyes|BEEESRITKRE

A °

REE_TEERF=_A=1+—
BIEFE @ NA A ETide Time
Holdings Limited&] 32 3% * 1%
b ARRREREEHHAE
BERAAZHHITRAE -
ZHRBEEREBOEL
33,779,0007T ° YahE 2 #E— 5t
BEEN IR EMMTE32@) &R
AARZZZTEZEMFNANA T
BN o IR £ ST EE19(b)
BTt W E B BB K
21,622,000LERBE=ZZTET R
FZA=Z+—RHLEFEZRKA
Was R BR o

19.

OE:E RIS Notes to the Financial Statements
(B BIE)

GOODWILL (Continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the management
of the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the
goodwill. Based on this assessment, the carrying amount
of the goodwill was written down by HK$21,622,000. The
recoverable amounts have been determined on the basis
of net selling price. The recoverable amount is based on a
discount rate of 10% and certain key assumptions. Net
selling price has been determined based on past
performance and management's expectations for the market
development. The impairment loss recognised during the
year solely relates to the Group’s trading activities based in
Hong Kong. As the cash generating unit has been reduced
to its recoverable amount, any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amount
would cause the carrying value to be less than the
recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company and
Tide Time Holdings Limited entered into an agreement that
the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of
Tidetime Future Optical Media Technology Limited, which
was resulted in the goodwill of approximately
HK$33,779,000. Further details of the acquisition are set
out in note 32(a) to the financial statements and the
announcement dated 9 September 2004 issued by the
Company. As mentioned in note 19(b) above, an impairment
loss of HK$21,622,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2006.
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20. REMERFR 2R

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

r5HE
The Group
—EERE —“ZTThEF
2006 2005
BETT BB T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

DIHEEFE Share of net assets — —

TREHBEFEHAEER_ZE
FZRA=1T—RAZEEREEBK;
BoBENRFE MEZEHE
A RFELTEEER

b) @ >|

¥KER

2R

Form of
NEBE business
Name of Company structure

GrEEERAR IR FMKIL
([FZEEE]) Incorporated
Sun Satellite Television
Company Limited
("Sun Satellite”)

RZZEZRF=A=1T—H8 BHEX
ERFERECEBR LA ([BHRE
X)) BRERBIZHMERT - RZTE
NE=ZHAZH  BAGEREFR—FH
AX B 2% 17 R AL 25 42,000,0000% & i @
BAE 1T 2B ERLEBR ([H#
IRl - IR E - AEBRB B
ZEBRERMA30%E50.01%  MiZ
BIREZMAAAHE AR EFTHE
RAIBHEERS - ko FaIBEES
EERF-A=+—BALFEZHE
BEEETHE BB -

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, all
of which are unlisted corporate entities, which principally affected
the results or assets of the Group at 31 March 2006.

BHERELS
Proportion of
ownership interest

MR, AEEz BAXRT HKEAF

KRewE BRES KE KE

Place of Group’s  held by held by FE##
incorporation/ effective the the Principal
operations interest Company  Subsidiary activity

B 30% — 30% RENEELE
Hong Kong Inactive during

the year

Sun Television Cybernetworks Enterprise Limited (“Sun
Enterprise”) was an associate of the Group at 31 March 2005.
On 2 March 2006, Sun Enterprise issued and allotted Sun
Enterprise’s new 42,000,0000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each (the
“Right Issue”) to one of the shareholders. After the Right Issue,
the Group’s effective interest of 30% in Sun Enterprise became
0.01% and the status of this investment has been reclassified
from an associate to available-for-sale securities. This classification
resulted in a nil gain/loss in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2006.
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(A% 5|{8) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. ABE DT 2R (&) 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

B EE —_EEF=A=+—H The financial information of Sun Satellite extracted from the
LFEEREEZMBRE G RER unaudited financial statements for the year ended 31 March

ZHEERBMRIT 2006 is summarised below:
=3 ki —EThF
2006 2005
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Assets 10 13
B Liabilities (2,287) (2,277)
PR A Equity (2,277) (2,264)
Wz Revenue — =
REEERE Loss for the year (13) (30)
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(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21. BERE 21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
REERS
Available-for-sale EERS @t
securities Trading securities Total
ZEERE ZETRF CBERE ZTTHE CZEERE 0 ZTTR4
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
E¥Tn BEFT A¥FR BEFT et A BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARE The Group
RAES Equity securities
RERLT Listed in Hong Kong - - 49 15 49 15
REFBAR Listed in the United States
Ef of America 1 1 53,366° — 53,367 1
FLEH Unlisted 1 1 - - 1 1
FLTREES Unlisted debt securities 1 1 - — 1 1
3 3 53,415 115 53,418 118
LikAES Market values of lsted
LifE equity securities 75,889 126,062 53,415 115 129,304 126,177
RERMMELZ Carrying amount analysed
REE for reporting purposes as:
k) Current - — 53,415 115 53,415 115
ik ) Non-current 3 3 - — 3 3
3 3 53,415 115 53,418 118
ARH The Company
RAES Equity securities
RERLT Listed in Hong Kong - - 49 15 49 15
REFZE RE Listed in the United States
i of America 1 1 53,366° — 53,367 1
1 1 53,415 115 53,416 116
LiRAES Market values of lsted
2l eqity securities 12,168 15,210 53,415 115 65,583 15,325
RERMMEHZ Carrying amount analysed
BREEA - for reporting purposes as:
ik Current - - 53415 115 53,415 115
ik Non-current 1 1 - - 1 1
1 1 53,415 115 53,416 116
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(RE 5 {E)

21. &%

HiE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE (#)
AHHERSNERELAEERAR

Al F Asia Premium Television Group,
Inc. (TASTV]) (ZRABITIREFEE
FEANEEMNFEMARSL - ERHNE
NBERBZBARZMERESR)
SEEED B AEE1,0000 (Z2F A
& : AB%1,0007T) KA 1,000t (=
TERF : B1,00000) ZHE o &
SERARRZEED R BFEHASTV
ETBRZ2151%K%24% (=T H
F:11%Rk2.4%) s - ARAEKE
HASTVZ R ERRE RS W EBE RN
27 MZARMLTIREREE 28

BRASTVZ EmiRH 2 THHE » A
RERARNEERBRARRFEBASTVZ K
EFTRKM  MAQAREEREAT®R
MEWFAFEZAFEE  mER
BEE—_TZTZNF=A=1+—H8L*HF
EZREZMERE  ASTVRZZZ
NEZRA=+—BEEKRAEZFE -
At - EELLBASTVEE T ZT X
F=A=1+—BLFEZEEZNE
HEBEASTVETRGOZAFE B
ERNREERBASIVR-_ZZTREF
= A=+ —BZHMBARR AT REASTV
ZEMBROR=ZTTAAE=A=1+—
BzHABREMRTEREE - L& (=
T RHE ¢ #B#44,833,0007T) B EE
BEREZE-_TETF=A=+—8H
IEFEZHRAEBBRER o

BEBRFFEREASERAR AR
Sun New Media Inc. ([SNMDJ) (—F3
R EFIER & R B AF fE &R 2 1 sE Ak Sz
2R ERMHRENREZRBEZE
AREMEHKEE) 2L REE
2 7l A8 % 53,366,000 (Z 2 Z A
& &) KB ¥53,366,0000T (ZEF
FE &) RZTEEXF=A=+
—B AEBRAABZEEED T
BH22%(ZZTHF  8) R22%
—TERF &) ZSNMDEBER ©

21.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Note:

Included in the amounts of available-for-sale securities are the Group’s
and the Company’s investment in Asia Premium Television Group, Inc.
("ASTV"), a company incorporated in the State of Nevada of the
United States of America with its shares traded on a stock exchange
system in the United States of America, with a carrying amount of
HK$1,000 (2005: HK$1,000) and HK$1,000 (2005: HK$1,000)
respectively. At 31 March 2006, the Group’'s and the Company’s
investments represent a 15.1% (2005: 11%) and 2.4% (2005: 2.4%)
holding of the ordinary shares in ASTV respectively. ASTV is not
regarded as an associate of the Group because the Group has no
significant influence over its operating and financing activities.

Due to narrowness of the market of ASTV's listed shares and in view
of the large number of ASTV's listed shares held by the Group and
the Company, the directors consider that the quoted market price is
not a reliable indicator of fair value and ASTV has a significant net
liabilities as at 31 March 2006 by reference to the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2006. Accordingly, the
directors determine the fair value of the ASTV's listed shares by
reference to the audited financial statements of ASTV for the year
ended 31 March 2006 because the Company’s directors consider the
financial position of ASTV at 31 March 2005 reflects the best currently
available estimate of the carrying amount of ASTV's listed shares as
at 31 March 2006. No (2005: HK$44,833,000) impairment loss was
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 March 2006.

Included in the amounts of trading securities are the Group's and the
Company's investment in Sun New Media Inc. (“SNMD"), a company
incorporated in the State of Minnesota in the United States of America
with its shares traded on a stock exchange system in the United
States of America, with a carrying amount of HK$53,366,000 (2005:
Nil) and HK$53,366,000 (2005: Nil) respectively. At 31 March 2006,
the Group’s and the Company’s investments represent a 2.2% (2005:
Nil) and 2.2% (2005: Nil) holding of the ordinary shares in SNMD
respectively.
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22. ESREMERERR

(LA IE)

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AEH b NN
The Group The Company
—EEXRE ZITTRE ZCZEBERE ZTITHEF
2006 2005 2006 2005
(E3))
(restated)
EBEFT BT T EBEFT EETF T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE W Bt /B 1 Bl 3R IR Amounts due from
(Ktit(a) subsidiaries (Note (a)) — — 7,311 30,046
fEW — R BE A RIZKIE  Amount due from a related
(K& (b)) company (Note (b)) — 36,400 — 36,400
2 5 'R (F7#(c)) Trade debtors (Note (c)) 8,216 2,549 - —
Be  BRRER Deposits, prepayments and
H h & W BR 5K other receivables
(Bt (d) (Note (d)) 2,218 16,879 406 3,221
10,434 55,828 7,717 69,667

Bt - Notes:

(@ EUMBARREDNEER 2EK (@)  The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing
EEE RN - and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(b) EWEHEREEBRAR ([FFHE (b)  The amount due from Sun Media Investment Limited (“SMI"), a
BIRE]) (—MHEARFREERFR company controlled by Ms. Yang Lan (a former vice-chairman and
HTEEHRL T RAQRBAITE executive director of the Company) and Dr. Wu Zheng, Bruno (the
ERGRZ LT ZEBRAETZES 2 former executive director of the Company and spouse of Ms. Yang
RNA)FBETEER 22 REBHN Lan), is unsecured, non-interest bearing and are expected to be
—FRYE - recovered within one year.

(0 MREEBREZEWERER GNKRRER () An ageing analysis of trade debtors (net of impairment losses for bad

ZREBR) <REIMMOT :

and doubtful debts) at the balance sheet date is as follows:

rEE

The Group
ZEBEXRE —TERF
2006 2005
(E71)
(restated)
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
30BN Within 30 days 3,913 6
31260H 31 — 60 days 3,181 334
61290H 61 — 90 days 39 448
91£180H 91 — 180 days 636 1,761
181£360H 181 — 360 days 447 —
8,216 2,549

FEUEER — MR EZEB BT 152
180H M AR - A& B & ik E Bl B %
NRTFZEGERBRREEERERFE
KEREER -

Debts are usually due within 15 to 180 days from the date of billing.
The Group may, on a case by case basis and after evaluation of the
business relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit period
upon customers’ request.
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(A% 5|{8) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22. EFREMEBEBRERER (&) 22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Kiat © (4) Notes: (Continued)

(d ARARZZTZERAF=A=+—HZ (d) Included in the Company’'s deposits, prepayments and other
Re - BNRBERAMEKREREE receivables at 31 March 2005 was an amount of approximately
JE i Bt & X ] R IE 4 7S 6 377,000 HK$377,000 due from an associate. During the year ended 31
L RBEZTTF=A=1T—H March 2006, the Company made full impairment against this
IEFEA  AARBRILRIBIEL 2 amount.
R -

(e) EBHREMEBUERBETINEE (e) Included in trade and other receivables are the following
2B EB AN BT E 2 FIA amount denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency of the entity to which they relate:

rEH PN
The Group The Company
2 —ETAHF —BR2ARF —ZETREF
2006 2005 2006 2005
F 7 F7z F 7 F 7T
000 000 ‘000 000
g T Singapore dollars — 400 — 400
23. REREFRELEE 23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
r5H b N
The Group The Company
—2FAF —TTHF ZFEAF _—TTHHF
2006 2005 2006 2005
BT T BT T BYTFT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BITRFEERES Cash at banks and on hand 11,525 10,965 4,816 3,285
BEARRZAGLRERRESEER Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet are
BATUERBIREEEUIINZEE R the following amounts denominated in a currency other than
BRI R the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:
r5H ¥ YN
The Group The Company
—®TXAF "TEIF -BEAF _—TTIF
2006 2005 2006 2005
Fr Fr Fr Fr
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
e United States dollars 136 3 2 1
e New Taiwan dollars — 10 — —
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2. EFREHMEMNERRK 24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
rEE Y NUNE|
The Group The Company
—EEXRE ZITTRE CZEBERE ZTITRF
2006 2005 2006 2005
(E751)
(restated)
BT BMFT BETF T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHMBARIZKIE  Amounts due to subsidiaries
(Kt (a) (Note (a)) — — 29,462 31,520
FEfF—MBE QR Amounts due to a related
I (K aEb) company (Note (b)) 456 — — —
B 5 ENEN Trade creditors
(it (c) (Note (c)) 3,202 6,260 — —
EEtBRREM Accruals and other creditors
J& 5 BR 3K 71,374 55,797 7,704 7,583
75,032 62,057 37,166 39,103
K&z - Notes:
(a) ENHMBREDEERR 2EREE (@)  The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing
TEERE o and have no fixed terms of repayment.
(b) ENERRERBHEERERAA (b)  The amount due to t REERBEHEERBR LA, a company
(—HHEEARAEERTEERERE controlled by Mr. Chen Ping and Ms. Ma Jian Ying, both of whom are
B TEG 2 AR RIB T EEA directors of the Company, was unsecured, non-interest bearing and
REREBETEERDY - has no fixed terms of repayment.
(00 REEBEZSEMNERZERERS TN () An ageing analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet date is as
T @ follows:
e
The Group
—EERF —TTRF
2006 2005
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
60H A Within 60 days 952 870
61290H 61 — 90 days 204 2,977
90H M k Over 90 days 2,046 2,413
3,202 6,260
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(RE 5 {E)

25.

26.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1T Eer

ERTERAE - % A5 ZE0.50325E
FENMEREBEE-_ZEETANFEF=A=1
—HIFERE2EHEE -

R ES
B ¥ K A 7 B Cosmos Media

Investments Limited ( [ Cosmos
Medial ) R =ZEZ - XA /NHEIL

ZREWZ ([REWR]) - AR/
Cosmos Mediafk i Al iR B — B 7| &

Zo=#H X ERKZE
26,000,000 7T (W HEFER B
202,800,0007T) 2 AT AR ES - A=
E—_F+ANAB - XN&HE
6,000,000% 7T (X HF RN B K
46,800,0007T) 2 &£ — & H ([ &
FERBTK - BHEREE - MK
JELE G O Hin - TRIA®
BREHFBR-_TTRFLA/NNBEAR
CHE2HER - EHF2AEXHAE
BRI EFEAE - BB &K T ERA
ERFFE10.145F o

25.

26.

BANK LOANS

The loan was unsecured, interest bearing at 0.50325% per month

and was repaid in full during the year ended 31 March 2006.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 6 June 2002 entered
into between the Company and Cosmos Media Investments
Limited (“Cosmos Media"”) (the “Subscription Agreement”), the
Company granted Cosmos Media rights to subscribe for a series
of convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount of up to
US$26,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$202,800,000)
in up to 3 tranches. On 9 July 2002, the subscription of the
tranche 1 bond (the “Bonds”) for the principal amount of
US$6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$46,800,000) was
completed. The Bonds are non-interest bearing and unless
previously cancelled, redeemed or converted, the convertible
bonds would be redeemed at 100% of the principal amount on
8 July 2005. Interest expense on the Bonds is calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective interest

rates of 10.145% per annum to the liability components.
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26. ATRRES (&)

BEERFAEAERR ST _FLAN
AE-TTRAFEAN\BILHBEEMR
REIRRESECBFRARBIZHE
AR -BE_TTRF=HA=1—
H ' 5,800,000% 7T (HHER KB
45,240,0007t) % 150,0003% 7T (1%
R&E#1,170,0007T) 2 AL HEE D
IR EREBRAEE0.02TRERE
ARBEOONRTZEBREBAERA
7] B% A 7 560,630,0004% & A% @ B 75
¥0.01t 2 EiBAR 297,181,250k &
BEEBEO T ZEBER - REZE
—EERF=ZA=+—"BILEFE A
& #384,000T B IR AR R R A A
ERTAEBRBENTZERLEER
7$32,473, 750k BRREEE%0.017T

TEk MAAEEFERERRE
KRB 2 EBR -

RZZEE_FNA-+LEH
Cosmos MedialA & BUB B R IZ R B
MERE _MRE=HEFZEF -
iff AN 2 &) [A & | Cosmos Mediaf%
AERBEAAREREMBEEK0.01T
e mR e RRE (TRRE]D - 2E
#4,000,000% 7T * REH A= Tg
—ENAZTEREBEE —HEHD
HA (BZZEZTRFLHANR) (B
ZB) ILEMKHE - BRRE—HE
HZHAEANERRBIERARBE —HE
FRBMB/BANABEBRZBKRE - &
Z_ZEERF=A=+—8H
Cosmos Media2 171# 1,335,185 7T
(KIHEE &% 10,413,0007T) 2 BEAR
AR AEB0OI2ZT 2ERRE
867,462,611 AR 7 B R EEE K
0.0tz &M

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

26.

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The bondholders have the right to convert their bonds into the
Company’s new ordinary shares at any time during the period
from 9 July 2002 to 8 July 2005. Up to 31 March 2005, the
principal amount of US$5,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$45,240,000) and US$150,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,170,000) were converted into 560,630,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each and 97,181,250 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each at the prices of HK$0.02 per ordinary share and HK$0.012
per ordinary share in the capital of the Company, respectively.
During the year ended 31 March 2006, a sum of HK$384,000
was converted into 32,473,750 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at the price of HK$0.012 per ordinary share in the capital of the
Company, after which all of the Bonds were converted into the

Company’s ordinary shares.

On 27 August 2002, Cosmos Media agreed to forfeit its rights
to the tranche 2 and tranche 3 bonds pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement and the Company agreed to grant to
Cosmos Media an option (the “Option”) to subscribe for
additional new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
for a total value of US$4,000,000 at any time from 27 August
2002 up to and including the maturity date of the tranche 1
bond, 8 July 2006, at any of the actual conversion prices of the
tranche 1 bond which the holder of the tranche 1 bond has
actually adopted as the conversion price of the tranche 1 bond
into the ordinary shares of the Company. Up to 31 March 2005,
Cosmos Media has exercised the Option of US$1,335,185
(equivalent to approximately HK$10,413,000) to subscribe for
the Company’s 867,462,611 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
a price of HK$0.012.
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(A% 5|{8) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27. MMEMERE

R-TEAF=A=+—0 £4£H
CRAREREMENT

27.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 31 March 2006, the Group had obligations under finance

leases repayable as follows:

r5E
The Group
ZEBERE “ZTRE
2006 2005
RERE KERE
ZHE  ARHEZ JRE  AREEZ
Present BRI EHX RERE Present BRI SR REHE
value Interest By value Interest eg
of the expense Total of the expense Total
minimum relating minimum minimum relating minimum
lease to future lease lease to future lease
payments periods payments payments periods payments
BETR BEFR BEFR BEFT BETT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ER Within 1 year 235 29 264 235 29 264
—FREMER After 1 year but
within 2 years 234 29 263 234 29 263
MERBRER After 2 years but
within 5 years 273 34 307 507 64 571
507 63 570 741 93 834
742 92 834 976 122 1,098
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28. BiHE

(a)

(b)

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(A& % 5I{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
28. TAXATION
EERBERAZHERE (a) Taxation in the balance sheet represents:
S 4|
The Group
—EBERE —“ZTThEF
2006 2005
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RMA—BZ
JE @A Tax payable at 1 April — 182
TBEETE
IN=RNG Deconsolidation of subsidiaries — (182)
R=A=+—-8Z
JE T Tax payable at 31 March — —
ABERELEHBEEE (BE) (b) Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) not recognised

BN 88 B FE R B m A A A
HKETEEE  HAKERR
ARV EBEREBATEBFEZ
FELEBHEERANANEE
177,299,000 (=TT H F -
& % 211,563,0007T ) &8
79,788,000 (—ZTZTHF : B
#110,434,0007T) °

R_ZEEREF=ZA=Z+—8"
BEBBBRIRBEEN K&
B v B EBBHBK
172,557,000 (ZEZE R F -
210,125,000 ) € &
W A E#4,672,0007C (= F
TRE : B81,438,0007T) ¥ A8
HELAERAFAER RZ-ZF
ERFEZA=1+—8 " RER
IBBED - RRABIZWHIBE
B4 E879,788,0007 (T
AF : H¥110,434,00070) N
ZEm o

REBRARRBRANEE R
BHAYTEEMBRERENERE
EERLIR -

The Group and the Company has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$177,229,000 (2005: HK$211,563,000) and
HK$79,788,000 (2005: HK$110,434,000), respectively, as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against
which tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 March 2006, the Group's tax losses of approximately
HK$172,557,000 (2005: HK$210,125,000) do not expire
under the relevant current tax legislation and of
approximately HK$4,672,000 (2005: HK$1,438,000) will
expire in five years from the year in which they were
incurred. At 31 March 2006, the Company’s tax losses of
approximately HK$79,788,000 (2005: HK$110,434,000) do
not expire under current tax legislation.

The Group and the Company had no other significant
potential deferred taxation not recognised for the year and
at the balance sheet date.
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(LA #5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. A 29. SHARE CAPITAL
B4 & E
No. of IE
shares Amount
fit i ‘000 HK$°000
Note Fhig B F T
EEEBR : Ordinary shares Authorised:
R_ZETEWMFEMA—B - At 1 April 2004, 31 March 2005
ZEERFE=ZRA=T-HEK and 1 April 2005, shares
“EZRFMA—H B of HK$0.01 each
EEEE0 T2 EBR 66,000,000 660,000
5 E b Share consolidation (b)(i) (64,680,000) —
FREEEK0.507T 2 KH Shares of HK$0.50 each 1,320,000 660,000
& 17 ¥ 48 Share subdivision (b)(iii) 64,680,000 —
RZZEERF=ZA=+—8 At 31 March 2006, shares
FREEEE.0T KRG of HK$0.01 each 66,000,000 660,000
BRITRAE Issued and fully paid:
RZZEZNFENA—H At 1 April 2004 13,854,250 138,542
RELBABREES Issuance of shares for the
BT D conversion of convertible bonds ~ (a) 97,181 972
BERER Issuance of shares under the
REEITRG placing and subscription () 1,973,056 19,730
7 U B — R P B A 7 Issuance of shares for the
BITRAD acquisition of a subsidiary (d) 3,667,000 36,670
AW E—I18 Issuance of shares for the
KEETRN acquisition of an investment (e) 1,400,000 14,000
BB T AT % Issuance of shares under the
BHAE T2 exercise of the subscription rights
REEEITRMD conferred by the convertible bonds 867,463 8,675
BEAER_ZEZTHF Issuance of shares under the
+TRARBRIYZERE exercise of the subscription rights
B T 2 RIEE conferred by the placing
BTl M agreement dated 5 October 2004 178,850 1,789
REEREARL Issuance of shares under the
BT capitalisation of loans (f) 1,186,160 11,862
R-ZEERF=ZA=1+—HBHR At 31 March 2005 and
—ETHFMA—H 1 April 2005,
BREEBEEST KRG shares of HK$0.01 each 23,223,960 232,240
BB BRRES Issuance of shares for the
Bl conversion of convertible bonds  (a) 32,473 325
B’ E b Share consolidation (b)(i) (22,791,304) —
ZREESE0.50L 2 KM Shares of HK$0.50 each 465,129 232,565
IR E Capital reduction (b)(ii) — (227,914)
FREBEESOIT KRG Shares of HK$0.01 each 465,129 4,651
BERERRE Issuance of shares under the
BT placing and subscription (c) 67,232 672
Al —EHE A Issuance of shares for the
BTG acquisition of a subsidiary (d) 23,676 237
RZZEERF=ZA=+—8 At 31 March 2006, shares of
FREEEE.0T KRG HK$0.01 each 556,037 5,560
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29. BRA& (&)

e

(a)

(b)

ABTRRES

REBEE-_ZETERFE=A=+—H8ItF
JE » A& % A150,0005k T (BSR4
75 #1,170,00070) 2 AT EH R =
TENFEF+ B =-RAERE AL
97,181,250k B R EEE%0.01T 2
LRk HIBEABREBERER
0.0127T °

REBEE-_ZTTZNE=-A=1+—HItHF
E » A28 #384,0007T 2 Al # IR (&
AR _ZEERFERANBELRE
32,473,750k B R EEHK0.01T 2
LRk HIBEABREBRER
0.0127T °

RAEA

BEARRAR_ETEAF+_A+H
BRITZERFRARE LBBZFEH
REBR AR EETRAEE  BIF
& A Bl Rk K % 15 R 4B a0 R

(i) RGEG

B0k BREMBEREK0.01T2
BT RARBEITRMOE HFAE1K
&M EES #0.50T 2 K H
(T’ a #fl) - &
66,000,000,000% & i% ™ & 76
Mool zEERGBG R
23,256,433,0000% & i% E B 76
001 L2 EBITRMDFTE -
RRABZAEAEEBRITRHE S
B & Bf A #71,320,000,0000% 5%
E & D R 49465,129,0004% 2 2%
1Th o
(i) RAEH
REMHEHE  BREZETR
5 2 T B 7 BR 7N B L 18 B S
0.507T R E B #0.017T ([A%
ANHR]) ° $2465,129,0000% &
A% (B 5 ¥ 0.507T 2 B 1T
BEtE - KRB ZEEITRA
FRAHEECHBERABEY
227,914,0007C © M & & 4
232,565,000 T @ 2 = B & %)
4,651,0007T ©

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

29.

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Conversion of convertible bonds

During the year ended 31 March 2005, convertible bonds with the
principal amount of US$150,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,170,000) were converted into 97,181,250 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each on 3 December 2004. The conversion price was
HK$0.012 per ordinary share.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, a sum of HK$384,000
convertible bonds was converted into 32,473,750 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each on 9 May 2005. The conversion price was HK$0.012
per ordinary share.

Capital reorganisation

Pursuant to a special resolution passes at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 15 September 2005, the Company carried
out a capital reorganisation comprised of capital reduction and shares
subdivision as follows:

(i) Share consolidation

Every 50 issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each were
consolidated into 1 share of HK$0.50 (the “Share
Consolidation”). On the basis of 66,000,000,000 authorised
shares HK$0.01 each and 23,256,433,000 issued shares of
HK$0.01 each, the authorised and issued shares of the
Company were consolidated into approximately 1,320,000,000
authorised and approximately 465,129,000 issued shares
respectively.

(i)  Capital reduction

Upon the Share Consolidation, the nominal value of every issued
share was reduced from HK$0.50 to HK$0.01 upon the capital
reduction (the “Capital Reduction”). On the basis of
465,129,000 issued shares of HK$0.50 each, the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced from approximately
HK$232,565,000 to approximately HK$4,651,000 by cancelling
paid-up capital of approximately HK$227,914,000.
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(LAE % ZI1E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. BRA& (@)

ff

(b)

(c)

: ()

BRAEH (&)

(i) RAEEHE (&)

E A BRI EE 2 RBAEB
#227,914,0007T * BEREHZE
R EERZERGEHEELD
89,305,000 T + B K 8 R 51 &5
1B A B 49407,288,0007T © M
BRBEAUABREADNAZERE
ﬁ% °

(i) R FA

REABIR%E - AR RRKRAF
R EED #0.507T 2 BB
ERGHERAETTRERE
BB % 001t 2 ¥ & 7
(TR FEHI) - Bt &
1,320,000,0000% 3% & B% 15 &t
B ARRIZEERASBE
660,000,0007T A BZ 10 #F 4014 B
# 41 /5 66,000,000,000/% & f&
E{EEE0.01 T2 ’&D -

BERRBE

%

BE—

T ARARZZTETEFENA+E
HERBESRAR (EAEENRE)
AIVEERE  ATRLTBEREE
0.012L ZBERMBAZIEEE (B
SN A=) B2 £ 1,030,000,000/% &
BREESE0N TZHERR - BE
ZFT1S AR IEF RE B 11,852,000 2
RE—REEZS -

it

REBEE-_ZTZTRAF=A=1T—HIF
B AR _TTNFE+ARERARE
% 32 N R A 4 Achambay Investment
Corporation( [ Achambay
Investment]) F] S BE & 3% - A B
T om AR B % 0.012T 2 B K [
Achambay Investmentf &
387,500,000 & X EEE¥0.017T 2
MEBR - BEZMERIBFESE
4,650,0007T 2 AEEE AR EE 2 K E
BBfE -

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Capital reorganisation (Continued)

(ii)  Capital reduction (Continued)

The amount of HK$227,914,000 arising from the Capital
Reduction together with the credit balance of approximately
HK$89,305,000 standing in the share premium account were
set off against the accumulated losses of approximately
HK$407,288,000 and the balance was transferred to
contributed surplus of the Company.

(iii)  Share subdivision

Upon the Capital Reduction, every authorised share of HK$0.50
each in the capital of the Company were subdivided into fifty
new shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Share Subdivision”).
Accordingly, on the basis of 1,320,000,000 authorised shares,
the Company had authorised share capital of HK$660,000,000
divided into 66,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each upon the
Share Subdivision.

The placement and subscription

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company entered into a
placing arrangement on 16 August 2004 with FB Gemini Capital
Limited as Placing Agent to place new 1,030,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each to more than 6 investors, independent external
parties, at a price of HK$0.012 per ordinary share. The net proceeds
of HK$11,852,000 from the placing have been used for general
working capital.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company entered into a
placing arrangement on 5 October 2004 with Achambay Investment
Corporation (“Achambay Investment”), an independent external party,
to place new 387,500,000 ordinary share of HK$0.01 each to
Achambay Investment at a price of HK$0.012 per ordinary share. The
net proceeds of HK$4,650,000 from the placing were used for the
repayment of the Group’s outstanding liabilities.
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R (%)

ffat « (&)

(c)

(d)

BERRE (&)

REBE-ZZERF=A=+—HLF
B ARAR-_ZFTZWF+—H =+

7~ B 2 % 7 Sh & A £ Enter-B
Corporation } %8 37 ) 38 A = 86 & % 5

ERIN D RE R - B ZWRE
RIEARBZRERE BB 0.0187T
2 &5 Bl 7R 250,000,000% & A
E75%0.0170 2 E @M% 305,555,556
BEREESE0.0ITZER

A% o R

iE 2 42 P18 AIEF FE A5 610,000,000
TEAEEASBZAEERER
Eh—REEED -
REBE-ZEAF=A=1+—HLF
B ARARAR_ZEZERFE+_F— E
BERIEEREZHEEZSFEGRA
ﬂlﬁ%%m’%#haﬁk%m

0.15 L 2 B ABB6ERESR (B
RARRZ AT)ERE67,232,0000k &
BREESKNTZLEBER - BEZ
FT 1S 3 I8 F R 4975 % 10,003,0007T 2
RE—REERS -

W e — R E A

REBE-ZZERF=A=+—HLF
B ARAR_ZZWEFNA=+—
PREFEHERZERFRAE (BAR
AEERFAELEEGZAB LA

GHEEERE  NKBEREEHLE
BERARZEER &It - AAF

i 5% A S #0.0157T 2 BIR AR
1%Hﬂﬂ:ﬂxﬁﬁ&“ A 1T R A
3,667,000,0008% &R EEE#0.017T
ZHEBR - AERZIEBUWEZER

:$§T¢EH +—HBItF

RAIR_—_ZTERE+_-_F—H
/\/§//ﬂ§iﬁiuT_ﬂ5§p§ LA U B8
Treasurepoint LimitedZ 2 #E 25+ #&
b ARFRZREBREBRBE0.17T
2B EIT A3 23,676,471 B %
EE0.0I 2L @MAR - AtERZIE
Wi 2 R (E -

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

29.

(LA IE)

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

The placement and subscription (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company entered into
the two subscription arrangements on 26 November 2004 with Enter-
B Corporation, an independent external party, and Mr. Zheng Yuhan,
an independent external party, whereby these two subscribers agreed
to subscribe 250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and
305,555,556 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.018
per ordinary share, respectively. The aggregate net proceeds of
HK$10,000,000 from the subscriptions were used for the repayment
of the Group’s outstanding liabilities and for general working capital.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with South China Securities Limited as Placing
Agent to place new 67,232,000 ordinary share of HK$0.01 each to
more than 6 investors who are independent to the Company at a
price HK$0.15 per ordinary share on 1 December 2005. The net
proceeds approximately equal to HK$10,003,000 from the placing
have been used for general working purpose.

Acquisition of a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement on 21 August 2004 with
Tide Time Holdings Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Chen Ping,
a director of the Company, for the acquisition of 100% interest in
Tidetime Future Optical Media Technology Limited whereby the
Company issued and allotted new 3,667,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$0.015 per ordinary share to Tide
Time Holdings Limited as total consideration of this acquisition.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Company entered into
the agreement on 1 December 2005 with Ms. Pan Shuying for the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Treasurepoint Limited, whereby
the Company issued and allotted new 23,676,471 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$0.17 per ordinary share to as total
consideration of this acquisition.
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(LAE % ZI1E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RA ()
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29.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Acquisition of an investment

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement on 21 May 2004 with Mr. Li
Hon Sang (“CS Vendor”), an independent third party, for the
acquisition of the entire issued capital of China Sports Media Limited
whereby the Company issued and allotted new 1,400,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$0.026 per ordinary share
to CS Vendor as total consideration of this acquisition.

Capitalisation of loans

Pursuant to a deed of settlement dated 24 January 2003, China
Strategic Holdings Limited, Hanny Holdings Limited and Star East
Holdings Limited (collectively referred to as the “Creditors”) agreed
to settle the loan of HK$40,000,000 by the issue and allotment of
the Company’s new 400,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each at the expiry of 24 months after the date of the deed of
settlement. The completion date of the issue and allotment of these
new ordinary shares was 24 January 2005.

On 6 October 2004, the Company entered into a conditional loan
capitalisation agreement with Shanghai Jinchao Silk Co., Ltd. (/& %%
B4 A B R F AR (“Creditor”), an independent third party, and
Ning Bo Shengguang Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd. (%)% &% )t 15
ENfRlE BR A A) (“the Assignor”) whereby the Assignor agreed to assign
a loan of RMB10,000,000 (approximately equivalent to HK$9,347,000)
due from the Company to the Creditor, and the Company also agreed
with the Creditor to issue and allot new 786,160,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$1 each at a price of HK$0.012 per ordinary share to
set-off against this loan due to the Creditor.

All those shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all

respects with the then existing shares.
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(A& % 5I{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
30. &M 30. RESERVES
(a) x&= (@) The Group
INGE $:32-PN; 1
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BRERE
RftEE BHER EIRRE A Share  Eftfiff  E2HER SERRER
Share Contributed Translation ~ Capital option Other Accumulated @5 Minority st
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
A¥FT  BEFT BRI BETn ARETn  AETn BT BETn AETn Bk
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 RMB000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
RZFSMEMA At 1 April 2004, as
—B MAZH previously reported 1,776 174,867 (168) 3,490 — 40,000 (233,645)  (13,680) — (13,680)
REHBREDE  Hfect of retrospective
ERREL adjustments upon
F2 (Wit3) changes in accounting
policies (note 3) - - - - - - - - 9,596 9,596
R-2EmE At 1 April 2004,
HA—H ' E3l as restated 1,776 174,867 (168) 3,490 - 40,000 (233,645) (13,680) 9,5% (4,084)
BUE-R Premium on issuance
HEAR of shares for the
ki acquisition of a
(H££29(a) subsidiary
LA (note 29(c) 18,335 = = = = - _ 18,335 - 18,335
BUE-ERE Premium on issuance
Bk of shares for the
(K#£29(e)) acquisition of an
LAE investment
(note 29(e)) 22,400 — — — — — — 22,400 — 22,400
RERERDE  Premium on issuance
E1kB of shares under
(B 29(c)) the placing and
LA subscription
(note 29(c) 6,772 — — - — — — 6,772 — 6,772
REZETAR  Premium on issuance
EHETRG of shares under
(K#29)) the conversion of
LAE convertible bonds
(note 29(a)) 198 = — - - - - 198 — 198
BEAETAR  Premium on issuance
ERHET of shares under
REERH the exercise of the
k2 af subscription rights
conferred by the
convertible bonds 1,738 - - - = = — 1738 _ 1,738
REAE Premium on issuance
RZZEME of shares under
+RERY the exercise of
LRERZ the subscription
FE T ARR rights conferred
RN 2EE by the placing
agreement dated
5 October 2004 536 — - - - - = 536 = 536
BREERERL  Premium on issuance
EkB of shares under
(290 the capitalisation
LB of loans (note 29(f) 37,485 = = - — (40,000) — (2,515) _ (2,515)
TEGAHE Deconsolidation
N of subsidiaries - — 24 - — — = 244 (186) 58
HERBAR Disposals of subsidiaries ~ — — — — - - - — (1871)  (1871)
EBERERF  Employee share
option benefits - - — — 2 = = 2 — )
rEERE Loss for the year = = = - — — (77040) (177.040)  (1,539)  (178,579)
RZEERE At 31 March 2005,
=A=1-A" a restated
HE7) 89240 174867 % 3490 2 —(410685)  (143010) — (143000)
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(LAE % ZI1E)

30. f&#@ (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(a) A5HE (&) (a) The Group (Continued)
ARAREREARR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ERE TRk
i EREE HERR
RhRE EBRER ERGE ERBE HtEE Share  Convertitle 23T EE E&
Share  Contributed ~ Translation Capital Other option bond  Accumulated B3t Minority Eh)
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests Total
AETr B¥Tn BETn ARTn BETn BETn ARTn AETn A¥Tn B¥Tn BT
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$ ‘000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ik At 1 Apr 2005, as
o E—E ; previously stated
iR 89,240 174,867 16 3,490 = = —  (410683) (143,010) - (143,010)
mu RREGE  bffect of rerospectve
L ) adjustments upon
252 (W) changes in accounting
polcies (note 3) = - - - - 1 = (2) = = -
89,240 174,867 76 3490 - 2 —  (410685) (143,010) - (143,010)
m@ﬁﬁﬁ%@jﬁ Effect of prospective
el ) adjustments upon
178 () changes in accounting
policies (note 3) 493 - - - - - 99 (586) 1 - 1
ik At 1 Apri 2005,
mA-A s restated
2] 89,738 174,867 16 3,490 = 2 9 (112m1)  (142,999) - (142,999
?E%Rﬁmﬁﬂﬁ Issuance of shares under
f ﬁ%\’?‘ﬁﬁ% the conversion of
(29 convertble bonds
(note 29(3)) 158 - - - - - (99) - 59 - 59
RAa%R Share consolidation and
W@iﬁ capital reorganisation
(Kiiz29(b)) (note 29 (69305)  (90069) - - - - - I
*Eﬁ @E%& Issuance of share under
i@ﬁ\?’;‘ﬂ% the placing and
(90) stbscription
(note 29(c) 9,331 - - - - - - - 9,331 - 9,331
EW@‘M@’REI Issuance of shares for
?T\Wﬁ the acquistion of
(29 a subsidiary
(note 29(d)) 3,788 - - - - - - - 3,788 - 3,788
EEERERA Employee share
option benefits - - - - - 4 - - 4 - 41
BEENER Exchange difference on
Zﬁﬂ Bage translation of financial
ERZE statements of overseas
subsidiaries - - 11 - - - - - 1 - Ul
REEER Los or the yer = = = = = = — [B6S5I0)  [6SM0) - 50)
. At31 March 2006
=R=1-H 13,710 84,798 197 3490 - LS} - (40493) 61,745 - 61,745
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30.

ERRE
(b) A2FH

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
30. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) The Company
BRERR
43 % E BEHRH Share Hth ke RitER
Share  Contributed option Other Accumulated @t
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BETT BEFTT BEFTT BEFTT BEFTT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEMWE At 1 April 2004
MA—H 1,776 174,867 — 40,000 (232,762) (16,119)
BIE—R  Premium on issuance of
WERR shares for the acquisition
Bk of a subsidiary
(Hfi29(d)  (note 29(d)
LRE 18,335 = = — — 18,335
BUY—ERE  Premium on issuance of
BIIRA shares for the acquisition
(B15£29()  of an investment
LRE (note 29(e)) 22,400 = = — — 22,400
REEER  Premium on issuance of
RBEIMD  shares under the placing
(Bf#29(c))  and subscription
i fE (note 29(c)) 6,772 = — — — 6,772
RIE R AR Premium on issuance of
EHETRH  shares under the
(B15£29(2))  conversion of convertible
LRE bonds (note 29(a)) 198 = = — — 198
REFEAER Premium on issuance of
EHME T2 shares under the exercise
RBEETT  of the subscription rights
B2 &EE  conferred by the
convertible bonds 1,738 — — = — 1,738
REFER  Premium on issuance of
“ZFRE  shares under the exercise
TAEA of subscription rights
ATUZEE  conferred by the placing
BEFME T2  agreement dated
REEE(T 5 October 2005
k2 & E 536 = = — — 536
REEFE  Premium on issuance of
KILBETRH  shares under the
(Bfi£29(f))  capitalisation of loans
LifB (note 29() 37,485 — — (40,000) — (2,515)
EEBEMBEE  Employee share
& option benefits — = 2 — — 2
REEER  Loss for the year — — — — (174,528) (174,528)
RZEZRE At 31 March 2005,
=ZA=t—H" a5 restated
] 89,240 174867 2 —407,290)  (143,181)
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(LA #5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. f##& (&) 30. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) AATF (&) (b) The Company (Continued)
CE: 3
BRERE B E
R EE BEHER Share  Convertible ZitER
Share  Contributed option bond Accumulated @t
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BETT BEFT BEFT BETFT BEFT BEFTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZZFFHE At 1 April 2005, as
mA—A previously stated
JUETES 89,240 174,867 - - (407,288)  (143,181)
R BER  Effect of retrospective
ZHEEY  adjustments upon
HRZ¥E  changes in accounting
(Hfix3) policies (note 3) - — 2 — ) —
89,240 174,867 2 — (407,09)  (143,181)
REHBE  Effect of prospective
EHEAE  adjustments upon
#E %2  changes in accounting
(B13£3) policies (note 3) 498 — — 99 (586) 1
WZZZTHE At 1 April 2005,
mA—A as restated
4T 89,738 174,867 2 99 (407,876) (143,170)
1R 5 AR Issuance of shares under
EHETRD  the conversion of
(Bf5£29(a))  convertible bonds
(note 29(a)) 158 — — (99) — 59
Bip&H - Share consolidation
AL R reduction and capital
RAER reorganization
(Kfi29(b))  (note 29(b) (89,305) (90,069) - - 407,288 227914
BIERE R Issuance of share under
BIRM the placing and
(B13£29(c)  subscription (note 29(c)) 9,331 — — — — 9,331
BUWE—H  Issuance of shares for
WEAF the acquisition of
BIRH a subsidiary (note 29(d))
(H#£29(d) 3,788 — — — - 3,788
{E & B MRERF Employee share
option benefits — — 4 — — 4
AEEEE  Loss for the year - — - - (38,453) (38,453)
RZZERE At 31 March 2006
=A=1+-H 13,710 84,798 43 — (39,041) 59,510
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30. f&#@ (&)

(b) =27 (&)

AEBRERAQARIZEBRBHBIE
B Bl R % 15 5 B BR AT EE £ 2 0%
B8 - PRAS BB K B LA GE AR
NAR—_ZEE=ZFMWA—AB XK
—ETRFNA+TANAZ RS
&5 18 5 Bl 7% # 606,000,0007T K
75 ¥ 407,288,0007T 2 = 8 (40
B EE29(b)(iNFT# B8) ) ©

AEBZEAFRBERE-N
N—F+-—RAETKREEAEM
Y Bg 2 B B & B 2 X {7 H (B B2
RRBF MR 2B BTN
HEMEZEZR °

RZEERF=A=+t—8"
AEBZ RN EEEEAEE
fRENRIRBZBEOL (ZF
TRE : B%4,345,0007T) °

BEEBRE—NAN—FAF
A RZFERFZA=+—
B ARRTBRAKNARZK
ROREFEMEE - A - &
RARZZEERF=ZA=+—
BzBRHDEEERERZBE
13,710,000t (Z T TR F (&
%) : ¥ 89,738,0007T) ] A
BROABRZ FREDIR -

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

30.

(LA IE)

RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

The Company (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
represents the difference between the net amount arising
from the reduction of share premium account, Capital
Reduction and the transfer to eliminate the Company’s
accumulated losses of HK$606,000,000 at 1 April 2003
and HK$407,288,000 at 16 September 2005 (as disclosed
in note 29(b)(ii)).

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in November
1992 and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued

in exchange therefor.

At 31 March 2006, the accumulated losses of the Group
include HK$0 (2005: HK$4,345,000) retained by associates
of the Group.

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, at 31
March 2006, the Company cannot distribute any of its
reserves to the shareholders of the Company. However,
the Company’s share premium account of HK$13,710,000
(2005 (restated): HK$89,738,000) as at 31 March 2006

can be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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(LAE % ZI1E)

31.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EaHERR

AN_ZET-F+AZTNAF - AR
AR —IEEREE Bt BEF
g 2ENERREEEMAEES KK
NAIEERLERE  URBEERAT
B ([E&tEl) - R=ZFZT=_F+A
—tAR - BFEIKERIE - FER
REETE ([FTET81)) B BRA - Bt -
EEgN2ERNBERAEREMNEE
BES  AEEEMIHERREFS
FARRREMESE RRRE L BR
B URBARQFRG - Hig - AR
BAITERBES SR EEMBRE -
BBETERE ZBREDIRES
S 2 IRFRATHE -

MEFEME  BREZTEERR
PEERROREER L BB AR
X5 BEBRZZ FHKTES0% M
HEzREE - BREANIK L AR
FTREER T EANITE - BLEETE
ms - BREZTEEARGOEME -
RO L B R W ER
BRORBEZERLAHNAEIZAE
BRIz FARMEBE=E2&=E °
et Bl B EEAB R T
F O HE-_Z——F+A=-+N\H
_U: °

i1

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

Prior to 29 October 2002, the Company operated an option
scheme whereby the board of directors could, at their absolute
discretion, grant options to any employees of the Group and
directors of the Company to subscribe for shares of the Company
(the "Old Scheme”). On 29 October 2002, the Old Scheme was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme"”)
was adopted, whereby the board of directors may, at their
absolute discretion, grant options to any eligible employees of
the Group, any suppliers and customers of the Group or any
directors and shareholders of the Company to subscribe for shares
of the Company. Thereafter, no further options can be granted
under the Old Scheme. The options granted under the Old
Scheme are still exercisable in accordance with the terms of the
Old Scheme.

For the Old Scheme, the exercise price of options was the higher
of the nominal value of the shares and 80% of the average
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The share
options are exercisable for a period of not more than ten years
commencing from the date of grant. For the New Scheme, the
exercise price of the options will be the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant and the average closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The life of the New
Scheme is effective for ten years from the date of adoption until
28 October 2012.
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31.

ERMEREN @)

BRBEREGTRAARE KK

2 #EH| -

(a) BEREZEF

(i)

(i)

FARBEFE R L 2 M
RITEBREFBAOT ¢

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share.

(a) Movements in share options

(i)  The particulars of the share options granted under

the Old Scheme outstanding during the year are as

follows:

—EEXRE “ETRF
2006 2005
g H Egls
Number Number
KA — At 1 April 148,700,000 744,190,000
A& A E‘Iﬁﬁ/ﬂ%ﬁ Cancelled/forfeited before adjustments (800,000) (595,490,000)
ARME R H A Adjustments due to Share
SHEMED 2 AE Consolidation and others (144,640,000) =
RAEEEFHE /I Cancelled/forfeited after adjustments (2,940,000) —
R=A=+—8H At 31 March 320,000 148,700,000
R=RA=+—H Options vested at 31 March
B2 ERE 320,000 148,700,000

FARARBEHETEE L 2 =
RATEBRESBOT ¢

(i)  The particulars of the share options granted under the

New Scheme outstanding during the year are as follows:

—EEXRE “ETRF

2006 2005

g H # B

Number Number

RmA—H At 1 April 15,000,000 —

B #17 Issued — 15,000,0000

ARGNE R H A Adjustments due to Share

SHEMEDL 2 AE Consolidation and others (14,700,000) =

R=A=+—H At 31 March 300,000 15,000,000
R=ZA=+—8H Options vested at 31 March

Bz B RE - —
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(LAE % ZI1E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31. BERMERAN (&)

(a)

31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

BRESE (&) (a) Movements in share options (Continued)
TREBER_ZEZERAFR_-Z The following table discloses the details of the share options
ERFNEEREEFREBR held by directors and employees and movements in such
BZFRBREZE holding during the year 2005 and 2006:
BRHEH
REBZER BR &5
fFHERHE REBZER
H-%%3% /0 43
ZA=t-Ak  AHHEEH BHE#/MH BRHEH BR &5
ZE2EE Cancelled!/ BRGAEH Cancelled/ fift@%s  WELIEL
RZZBME RER mA-A forfeited REHEE forfeited ~ R=BERE LifE 2fiRE
mA-A /M HATR before fifEzBE after  =R=t-H Exercise Exercise
HATE RERRE Cancelled/ Outstandingat  adjustments  Adjustments  adjustments HAGE  price before price after
Outstanding Granted forfeited 31 March  duetoShare  duetoShare  duetoShare  Outstanding adjustment adjustment
RERE at 1 April during during 2005and  Consolidation  Consolidation  Consolidation at31March  duetoShare  due to Share
Date of grant 2004 the year the year 1 April 2005 and others and others and others 2006  Consolidation  Consolidation
RIESZERE
Option granted
to directors
= R27/04/2000 38,000,000 = (1,000,000 ) 37,000,000 = (36,260,000 ) (740,000) — 0.1760 8.8000
— on 27/04/2000
- 105/09/2000 30,000,000 = (30,000,000 ) - — - - — 0.2410 AER
— on 05/09/2000 N/A
= 131/0172001 161,000,000 = (81,000,000 80,000,000 = (78,400,000 ) (1,600,000 ) - 0.1520 7.6000
— on 31/01/2001
~ 1R14/06/2001 1,000,000 = (1,000,000 ) - — - - — 0.1290 AR
— on 14/06/2001 N/A
~ 104/01/2002 70,000,000 = (40,000,000 ) 30,000,000 = (29,400,000 ) (600,000) — 0.1090 5.4500
— on 04/01/2002
- 107/01/2002 15,000,000 = (15,000,000 ) = = = = = 0.0140 AER
— on 07/01/2002 N/A
- 108/08/2002 11,000,000 = (11,000,000 ) - — - - — 0.0720 @R
— on 08/08/2002 N/A
- 5M6/09/2002 45,000,000 = (45,000,000 ) - — - - — 0.0710 AER
— on 16/09/2002 N/A
~ 1M4/03/2005 = 5,000,000 = 5,000,000 = (4,900,000 ) = 100,000 0.0215 1.0750
— on 14/03/2005
- 114/03/2005 = 5,000,000 = 5,000,000 — (4,900,000 - 100,000 W) 0.1360
— on 14/03/2005 Note (i)
~ 5M4/03/2005 = 5,000,000 = 5,000,000 — (4,900,000 ) — 100,000 k] Hizk i)
— on 14/03/2005 Note (i) Note (i)
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31. EmMEEN (@) 31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)
(a) BRESD (&) (a) Movements in share options (Continued)
BR &5
REMZER BRfB& %
fEHAZAE REBZER
RZZSLE /0K iR %
ZA=t-BR  AHAERH Bkt Bid#/DAE RR A% RRHEH
E23% Cancelled/ B RER Cancelled/ mft@REs  mELERA
RZZFME RER mA-H forfeited SR forfeited ~ R=-FFAE LiRE kR
A-A /B HATE before 8B after  =A=t-8 Exercise Exercise
AT REARH Cancelled/ Outstanding at  adjustments  Adjustments  adjustments MATE  price before price after
Outstanding Granted forfeited 31 March  duetoShare  duetoShare  duetoShare  Outstanding adjustment adjustment
REAH at 1 April during during 2005and  Consolidation  Consolidation  Consolidation at31March  duetoShare  due to Share
Date of grant 2004 the year the year 1 April 2005 and others and others and others 2006  Consolidation  Consolidation
REEZERE
Option granted
to employee
— 2710412000 60,900,000 —  (60,900,000) - - 78,000 - 78,000 0.1760 8.8000
— on 27/04/2000
- R13/06/2000 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) - - - - - 02310 RER
— on 13/06/2000 N/A
- #17/0772000 1,000,000 - (1,000000) - - - - - 0.2200 RER
— on 17/07/2000 N/A
- R21/0772000 6,000,000 - (6,000,000 ) - - - - - 0.2410 AER
— on 21/07/2000 N/A
~ 105/09/2000 4,800,000 - (4,800,000) - - - - - 0.2410 AER
— on 05/09/2000 N/A
- R14/1172000 2,400,000 - (2,400,000) - - - - - 0.1860 AER
—on 14/11/2000 N/A
- 708/12/2000 6,000,000 - (6,000,000 ) - - - - - 0.1830 AER
— on 08/12/2000 N/A
- R27/122000 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) - - - - - 0.1510 AER
—on 27/12/2000 N/A
— 13110172001 58,580,000 — (58,580,000 - - 24,000 - 24,000 0.1520 7.6000
— on 31/01/2001
~ 106/03/2001 100,000 - (100,000) - - - - - 0.1760 AER
— on 06/03/2001 N/A
- R230042001 17,000,000 — (17,000,000 - - - - - 0.0970 AER
— on 23/04/2001 N/A
~ 1X14/06/2001 1,000,000 = (1,000,000 ) = = = = = 0.1290 TR
— on 14/06/2001 N/A
~ 1R04/01/2002 48,960,000 = (47,260,000 ) 1,700,000 (800,000 ) (842,000 — 58,000 0.1090 5.4500
— on 04/01/2002
~ 1R25/03/2002 64,000,000 = (64,000,000 ) = = = = = 0.1520 TER
— on 25/03/2002 N/A
— 125/03/2002 1,450,000 - (1,450,000) - - — - - 0.1760 AER
— on 25/03/2002 N/A
~ 108/08/2002 31,000,000 = (31,000,000 ) = = 160,000 = 160,000 0.0720 3.6000
— on 08/08/2002
~ #16/09/2003 64,000,000 = (64,000,000 ) = = = = = 0.0710 TER
— on 16/09/2003 N/A
744,190,000 15,000,000 (595,490,000) 163,700,000 (800,000) (159,340,000 (2,940,000) 620,000
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(LAE % ZI1E)

31. BERMERAN (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

i1

(b) REFERERERKEKRITE

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at

BREZHRA the balance date
BikE B8 R R
oA ahEZ
TEE TEE
%t Exercise Exercise
BREBRH price before price after —ZBEXRE _—TTHF
Date of consolidation consolidation 2006 2005
options T of of B L g=
granted Exercisable period share option share option Number Number
HK$ HK$
B=
Directors
27/04/2000 27/04/2000 — 26/04/2010 0.1760 8.8000 — 37,000,000
31/01/2001 31/01/2001 — 30/01/2011 0.1520 7.6000 — 80,000,000
04/01/2002 04/01/2002 — 03/01/2012 0.1090 5.4500 — 30,000,000
14/03/2005 01/07/2006 — 31/12/2006 0.0215 1.0750 100,000* 5,000,000
14/03/2005 01/07/2007 — 31/12/2007 [t & (i) 0.1360 100,000* 5,000,000
Note (i)
14/03/2005 01/07/2008 — 31/12/2008 it 2% (i) it 2% (i) 100,000* 5,000,000
Note (ii) Note (ii)

300,000 162,000,000

* B % 7 & 6F i 1F 3 B 1R

() FTEEDIRARFBRODR-F

THE+ =

o

A2 ¥ B

(i) TEREDRARFBRODR-F

TNE+=

o

A2 ¥ B

* after the adjustments due to Share Consolidation
Notes:

(i) The exercise price is based on the average closing price of the
Company'’s shares in December 2005.

(i) The exercise price is based on the average closing price of the
Company's shares in December 2006.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31. EHERERN (8 31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)
(b) REEBRRKRBERREKRITHE (b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at
BB IR RE 2 R (48 the balance date (Continued)

ARALH EROAH
EHBEE fedEEE
PEE 2 fEE

R Exercise Exercise

BRERAS price before price after Z—BEXRE _—TTHF

Date of adjustments adjustments 2006 2005

options TS due to Share due to Share #H B

granted Exercisable period Consolidation Consolidation Number Number

HK$ HK$

=1

Employees

27/04/2000 27/04/2000 — 26/04/2010 0.1760 8.8000 78,000* —

31/01/2001 31/01/2001 — 30/01/2011 0.1520 7.6000 24,000* —

04/01/2002 04/01/2002 — 03/01/2012 0.1090 5.4500 58,000* 1,700,000

08/08/2002 08/08/2002 — 07/08/2012 0.0720 3.6000 160,000* —
320,000 1,700,000
620,000 163,700,000

* E & & B i 15 A B & @ after the adjustments due to Shares Consolidation
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(LA #5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31. EEMERERN &) 31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)
() BEFFEERLEZEREFE (c) Details of share options granted under the New Scheme,
T ZEBREZHHRT all of which were granted for nil consideration.
REFH -
BhE B
EHtATZ EfEz
THEE THEE
B Exercise Exercise
BRELS price before price after Z—EEXE "—TTHF
Date of consolidation consolidation 2006 2005
options TER of of g H 2R
granted Exercisable period share option share option Number Number
HK$ HK$
14/03/2005 01/07/2006 — 31/12/2006 0.0215 1.0750 100,000* 5,000,000
14/03/2005 01/07/2007 — 31/12/2007 o0, 0.1360 100,000* 5,000,000
Note (i)
14/03/2005 01/07/2008 — 31/12/2008 gzl Fft & (i) 100,000 5,000,000
Note (ii) Note (ii)

300,000 15,000,000

* MR & i 1E L AR @ after the adjustments due to Share Consolidation

Bt et - Notes:

@ TEEDNEARARBR-F (i) The exercise price is based on the average closing price of
FRETZ-AZFHKRTES the Company’s shares in December 2005.
g o

(i) FTEEDIRARARGR-F (i) The exercise price is based on the average closing price of
FAFTZAZFHKTER the Company’s shares in December 2006.
g o
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(e)

31. BERMERAN (&)

BRiEs A TFTERRBR
RR_ZEZERF=ATHAEE
HeBREMS @ KEERE
mMBMzREAFETIRED
BHERECATEEE -
R-EEREF=-A+HARH
ZEREZGARATFEAORE
#79,0007T ° FTUCER AR 7% 2 &
AT ETIRA S R AR TR
% # E & 18 X (Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model)# & © I
s

BREZ X FERERBRR

EHBH

TEE (BT

B H R 1R

EHEREFH (REXMAZ
I FFEm 275)
ERBAMNR(BE_TTHE
“ATHBEEBNIERES
EHzH ks EmETE)
78 B AR B W e

# *BT\E%Hx%Zﬁ1§EFB$ETF$
AR =TT SF+ A
ZFAHAKTEEE  mzTFH
WHEDESHREEREX
(Monte Carlo Stimulation

Model)E 4 - LAEBEZ A -

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA IE)

31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(d) No share option under the Old Scheme and New Scheme
was exercised during the years ended 31 March 2006 and
2005.

(e) Fair value of share options and assumptions

For the options granted on 14 March 2005, the fair value
of services received in return for share options granted are
measured by reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimated fair values of the options granted
on 14 March 2005 are approximately HK$79,000. The
estimate of the fair value of the services received is
measured based on Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model as

follows:

Fair value of share options and assumptions

—EERF=F+WH 14 March 2005
0.13621.075 0.136 to 1.075
82.87%

Date of grant
Exercise price (HK$)*
Expected volatility
Expected option life (expressed as
weighted average life used in the model)
Risk-free rate (based on the yields
to maturity of respective Hong Kong

2.3F 2.3 years

Exchange Fund Note as at 14 March 2005) 3.34%
Expected dividend yield 0%
g The exercise price of some options is determined by the average

closing price of the Company’s shares in December 2006, which
is derived by Monte Carlo Stimulation Model for valuation
purpose.
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(LA #5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31. BEHEEERN (&) 31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

BHREDRBERNRRREEZ —FF
BlEzBELRIEMERE - A HMA
ZHEHIFH  EREBEEEEH T E
& TERVIERTRATEAZEERE
ZEEMEzREMRBFTM T AHE -

FRAFEDREBREERFHAL
TE HR 0 £ b At 3 i Ak 2 R SRR R 2
FEBEAEZRZBRK °

BAREDRBRBEEMEL - 58
PR IR TG A FE 2R BEIR - X
EET AU RGN - RO BRERTR
R -

AEEERATEMBHRELRE2
SRATEZ @IEIRS - Bt - WEFER
REBE8ERARTIERARTREE (B
RES) 2BRE :

— RZZEE=ZF+—-—AEBA=x%2
AIAEERE 2 ERE : &

— R-ZTEZE-_F+—HFtBH2#%
HEERHEENR T HEF
—A—BR%REZERE -

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price annualised for one
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management'’s best estimate, for the effects of
non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations.

The above calculation is based on the assumption that
there is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the whole life of the options and the historical

volatility of the ordinary shares as set out above.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with the share option

grants.

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in HKFRS 2, under which no recognition
and measurement applied to the following grants of options

to employees (which term includes directors):

— options granted to employees on or before 7
November 2002; and

— options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
but which had vested before 1 January 2005.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(A& % 5I{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
32. REBERERME 32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(a) WEKELEA (a) Acquisition of subsidiaries

REBEZE_ZEZERFEF=RA=+— During the year ended 31 March, 2006, the Company
HIEFERN  KXARKERKES acquired 100% interest in Treasurepoint Limited, at a
#4,025,0007T H B& Treasurepoint consideration of HK$4,025,000, satisfied by the issue and
Limitedz 2%z - WEREKE allotment of the Company’s new 23,676,471 ordinary shares
REBRABEONTITZEBRET of HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$0.17 per ordinary
K Bg#23,676,47 1 IR SRR EE B share. The subsidiary acquired during the year ended 31
0.0 T2 AR AT L BR AT March 2006 contributed turnover and loss before taxation
RE REBEE-ZTZT F=A of Nil and HK$5,000 respectively for the period between
=t+—HIEFE  FE W the date of acquisition and 31 March 2006.

BAARKBANE-TTA
F=AS+-AHMBRELE
ERBHAEBSEBET
R % #5,0007T °

r58
The Group
B B8 A =)
ZREE
Acquiree’s
DYE carrying
Fair value amount
BETFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B EEFE Net assets acquired
EREE (F1716)  Intangible assets (note 16) 841 —
JEMBRSX - TEff5KIE  Debtors, prepayments
RiE® and deposits — —
BEFE Net assets 841 841
WHERELEZIEME  Positive goodwill arising on acquisition
(ft5t19) (note 19) 3,184
BRE Total consideration 4,025
SENPEVE Satisfied by:
BEITERR Issue of ordinary shares 4,025

hEH BT 2H £ K Analysis of net inflow/(outflow) of cash and
ZRABESBEERA cash equivalents in respect of acquisition
() BED M of subsidiary:

ENRSNKE Cash consideration paid
J8 C FTUEEMI B A R]  Less: Cash of the subsidiary acquired
ZBe
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(LAE % ZI1E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. FERTREBERWE (@)

(a)

WAEH B QR (F)

RBEE-TETRF=-A=1+—
BIEFEE  AEEUARERE
55,005,000 Y i 2= 12 = ¥ % %
BERAAZ2HER  RED
FREERERREE0.0157T
2 (B8 817 R AL %% 3,667,000/%
BREEBE0.01TTZAAEFH
TERENMN - RBE_ZTZTH
FZA=+—HLFE " AT
BeWBARIRKERBRZ -
TERFE-ZA=+—B&XE
FBERBHABESNEEK
13,0007T }2 % #10,841,0007T ©

32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group acquired

100% interest in Tidetime Future Optical Media Technology
Limited at a consideration of HK$55,005,000, satisfied by
the issue and allotment of the Company's new
3,667,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price
of HK$0.015 per ordinary share. The subsidiary acquired

during the year ended 31 March 2005 contributed turnover
and loss before taxation of HK$13,000 and HK$10,841,000

for the period between the date of acquisition and 31

March 2005.

r5H
The Group
—ZTThF
2005
BEFT
HK$'000
s EEEERE Net assets acquired
EEEE Fixed assets 22,850
EUBR R - BN RIE RIS Debtors, prepayments and deposits 361
RITRFERS Cash at bank and on hand 38
ENERZ - EUiR& KBt E M Creditors, deposits received and accrued charges (2,023)
BREFE Net Assets 21,226
WEREE ZEEIEME (Hi£19) Positive goodwill arising on acquisition (note 19) 33,779
BwmRE Total consideration 55,005
SENDENE Satisfied by:
BITEBER Issue of ordinary shares 55,005
hE-BHEARIZRER Analysis of net inflow of
ZEALEARA cash and cash equivalents in respect
RELW of acquisition of subsidiary:
ENREKE Cash consideration paid —
HomKERB AR RS Less: Cash of the subsidiary acquired 38
38
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32. FERTREBERWE (@)

(b) HEKWBQF

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Disposals of subsidiaries

N 4L
The Group
“EEXRE —“ZTThEF
2006 2005
BYFTT BB TF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHEEERE Net assets disposed of
B E & E Fixed assets 213 10,583
FEUWER ZR « TRT A Debtors, prepayments and deposits
) & &0 75 —
RITRFERS Cash at bank and on hand 1" —
ERER ElES Creditors, deposits received and
K s E accrued charges (34) —
265 10,583
HE (BB W (Loss)/Gain on disposal (265) 416
BRE Total consideration — 10,999
SENDENE Satisfied by:
He Cash — 10,999
HEWBARZREER Analysis of net (outflow)/inflow of
ZRAALEARY cash and cash equivalents in respect
(RA) BED M of disposals of subsidiaries:
ReRE Cash consideration — 10,999
A HERBRRZ Less: Cash of the subsidiaries disposed of
Re (11) —
R=ZA=+—-H2 Amounts receivable at 31 March
JE Y R HE — (1,833)
(11) 9,166

HEHEBHILE  FAMLE
ZHEBARAREEERE R
BAKTIT(ZZETHE - B
Tn) UHELEERBE
3000 (ZZEZTRF : B
5,0007C) °

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year contributed
HK$Nil (2005: HKS$Nil) to the Group’s turnover and had
loss from operations of HK$3,000 (2005: HK$5,000) up to

the date of disposal.
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(LAE % ZI1E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. FERTREBERWE (@)

(c)

TBRETENB AT

RBEE-TETEF=A=1+—
BEFE  A&EEHEFEE
HAEWBAR BEERA B
BEHME G EREAR
RIEE_ZZTNFMA—HiE
THEAFASREMBRE
Ne HEZSEHMBARAREZE
—EERF=ZA=F+—HLHF
EZUMBREEETNE B
B E—HHBERHINIB R
£ i EE18(a) ©

32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Continued)

(c) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2006 the Group disposed
of the Unconsolidated Subsidiaries, the directors considered
that for accounting purpose the Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
should be deconsolidated from the consolidated financial
statements with effect from 1 April 2004. The disposals of
these subsidiaries were resulted in a nil gain/loss in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006.
Further details are set out in note 18(a) to the financial

statements.

rEE
The Group
—TTREF
2005
BB TF T
HK$'000
FEHEEERE Net assets disposed of
EEEE Fixed assets 4,531
NIRRTy Purchased programme rights 4,700
FE Inventories 7,950
EWERER  BENRERERS Debtors, prepayments and deposits 12,171
RAOLFHERSE Cash at bank and on hand 6,502
ERER  BhEeREFTER Creditors, deposits received and accrued charges (8,052)
e AR S B R IEF 5 Net amounts due to the Group (144,142)
DEREE RS Minority interests (186)
(116,526)
RIBEGEEENE AR Translation reserve realised upon
iSE= 5l deconsolidation of subsidiaries 244
RABEREFERBRAR Goodwill reversed upon deconsolidation
REmE of subsidiaries 2,167
THEAFTEMB AT Net gain on deconsolidation
2 W FE of subsidiaries 114,115
TEBRETENBLARLZ Analysis of net outflow of cash and
ReRZERREEA cash equivalents in respect of
T FELN deconsolidation of subsidiaries:
THEEATENBATIZH S Cash of subsidiaries deconsolidated 6,502

FATBEAFENBRAYL
BERASETRERRASR

=

z °

The Deconsolidation of subsidiaries during the year did not have

significant cash flows attributed to the Group.
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32. FERTREBERWE (@)

(d) HEFRZREHENE QR

REBLE—TEERF=RA=+—
HIEFE - Profit Tradel — 2=
MEMA -—BHEHEF60%Z
BB AR @ ER% Y 40%HE
m e E— T HBERINNM B
HHIFE18(b) ©

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Continued)

(d) Disposal of unconsolidated subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2005, Profit Trade disposed
of 40% interest in SECC, a 60% owned subsidiary of the
Company at 1 April 2004. Further details are set out in
note 18(b) to the financial statements.

rEH
The Group
—ETRF
2005
BB TF T
HK$'000
FEEEEFE Net assets disposed of
ETEEE Fixed assets 1,995
- YNCIRER: 3 Purchased programme rights 10,150
BHILE Investments in securities 2,247
RSN BNRERES Debtors, prepayments and deposits 10,188
RAORFERS Cash at bank and on hand 1,126
EAERR  BEhiReREFTER Creditors, deposits received and accrued charges (2,844)
RAEE Bank borrowings (3,002)
e T Tax payable (182)
LEHRRER Minority interests (7,871)
11,807
ENPERBERRZKE Reclassified to investments in associates (7,132)
EHRENFE Translation reserve realised —
FEEEE Attribution goodwill 9,590
HEEE Loss on disposal (4,265)
BRE Total consideration 10,000
TRAA Satisfied by:
BHEENERR 2R Amount set off against the creditor 10,000
HEFGREHERBLRAZ Analysis of net outflow of cash and
BeRZERRELER cash equivalents in respect of
RHREDN disposal of unconsolidated subsidiary:
ReRE Cash consideration —
B HEEGREETE Less: Cash of unconsolidated subsidiary
MEBAR2RE disposed of (1,126)

(1,126)
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(LAE % ZI1E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. FERTREBERWE (@)

(e) XEEHFREXRS

(i)

(i)

(iii)

RBEEZZTTF=/A=
T—BHLEFE  XEEIZ
KB #4,025,0007T Y BE
Treasurepoint Limited 2 &
HER  REDERES
BT mAR B 0.017 T 2B
BT R B EE 23,676,471
KREREEEEOIITLZ
KRB EBRA -

RBE_ZTZTRF=A=
T—RILEE  FxEEZ
Hfo Bl BRRABEE
47,200,0007T LA 1,849,131
f%Sun New Media Inc.
([SNMDJ) (REFRE R
A &R EM MR 2
NE ERMREFNES
BRECBLHRGMAGE
B)RODz2ARIZN -
1,849,131 SNMDR& 15 2
B & JhSNMDR& 1D Bl & X 1+
HiEMNER A IE&%E
TEZSA (BFEZA)Z
BRFHKTEZ85% °

REBE_ZTERF=A=
T—BLEFE BEAEY
384,000 2 Af MR EH B
RERLTBERAB®0.0127T
2 K #® B R BA
32,473,7500% &= A% B ¥
0.01 Tz EBAR -

32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Continued)

(e)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group
acquired 100% interest in Treasurepoint Limited at a
consideration of HK$4,025,000. The consideration
was satisfied by the issue and allotment of the
Company's new 23,676,471 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.17 per ordinary

share.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group's
other receivables of HK$47,200,000 were settled in
form of 1,849,131 shares in Sun New Media Inc.
("SNMD"), a company incorporated in the State of
Minnesota in the United States of America with its
shares traded on a stock exchange system in the
United States of America. The pricing of the
1,849,131 shares in SNMD was 85% of the average
closing price per share of SNMD during the last ten
trading days of SNMD up to and including the day of
settlement of the other receivables.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the convertible
bonds of HK$384,000 were converted
32,473,750 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the
conversion price of HK$0.012 per ordinary share.

into
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32. FERTREBERWE (@)

() XEFREXH (&)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

REBEE-_ZETRAF=A=
T—RLFE  AEBEIRZ
X {8 % ¥ 55,005,000
EREENMAEEBERA
Rlz2EER - REHE
BIEERERRAK0.015
T2 B BT REE
3,667,000,000/% = i% M (&
BEOOITTZARRRIE
RS o

REBEEZZETERAF=A=
T+T—BLEFE  xXEEHIZ
K 1 10,000,0007T 1 & 17
BIRE 7 40%#x - LB
BEREMIRR

REBEEZZETERAF=H=
+—BLEFE - HE
150,000 7T 2 A ] IR & 25
(FEE R 4% %1,170,000
T EREREBRBEK
0O0NTZRBMEBHBRR
97,181,250 & R E B &
¥0.01 w2z Emk -

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

32.

(LA IE)

NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Continued)

(e)

Major non-cash transactions (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group
acquired 100% interest in Tidetime Future Optical
Media Technology Limited at a consideration of
HK$55,005,000. The consideration was satisfied by
the issue and allotment of the Company's new
3,667,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a
price of HK$0.015 per ordinary share.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group of
40% interest in SECC at a consideration of
HK$10,000,000 for settlement of a creditor.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the convertible
bonds of US$150,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,170,000) were converted into 97,181,250
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the conversion
price of HK$0.012 per ordinary share.
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33. MBEAREZEERAR
HHEERR REBESER - FE

Rk RkEBERBRAENEEBEXKB
B RAREFTEHEME @ ST R
TR EBRASEmMHZEARCE
Mo AEB—MERKER FRRE
R - ARAEBEEE 2 ARRRE
ERE  AEBRERAEMAITERE
b TEAES I ER - EEEHRARE
BT SERR 2 BE - BBABXR
man R

(a) FERE
AEBCZEERBRETEREE
SREMERER BEER
E-—EHGEERX  ULeRFHE
BE 5%

ERZEEERR

ARRHAEBRERETE
BEEZEPHEETREEESR
- ZERKRERNEZAH
FEFH 1808 W28 - fR5E M
1808 2 FE W AR 3% 1 B 5K SE 18
BHBER TERTEE -
AEE-—RAEREF P WEEK
e

RelFERARAEEE —RER
BREZRIARREAEBZEER
AR FFRET FEEEMR
TEXEANRBEEREAZFE
RTT ©

AEBYERABETEER

& o
A

ERiEERBRREERABRMA
FrEMHEERTERT °

338

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The directors of
the Company meet periodically to analyse and formulate measures
to manage the Group’s exposure to these risks. Generally, the
Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk management.
As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum, the
Group has not used any derivatives and other instruments for
hedging purposes. The directors review and agree policies for

managing each of these risks and they are summarised as follows:

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored

on an ongoing basis.

Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These receivables are due
within 180 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 180 days overdue are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral

from customers.

Cash and cash equivalents are normally placed with licensed
banks that have a credit rating equal to or better than the
Group. Given their high credit ratings, management does

not expect any licensed bank to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group does not have a significant concentration of

credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the

carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

33.

(LA IE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Company
also monitors closely the cash flows of its subsidiaries.
Generally, the Company’s subsidiaries are required to obtain
the Company’s approval for activities such as investment
of surplus cash, raising of loans and fixed assets acquisitions

beyond certain limits.

Interest rate risk

The interest rates and other terms of the bank loans and
convertible bonds of the Group are disclosed in notes 25

and 26 respectively.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi (“RMB").
The Group believes its exposure to foreign exchange rate
risk is normal. At present, the Group does not intend to
seek to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in future

as may be necessary.
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33. IkEKMEEEERAR (&)
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

Fair value

The following disclosure of the estimated fair value of
financial instruments is made in accordance with the
requirements of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39. Fair value
estimates, methods and assumptions, set forth below for
the Group’s financial instruments, are made to comply with
the requirements of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39, and should be
read in conjunction with the Group’s financial statements
and related notes. The estimated fair value amounts have
been determined by the Group using market information
and valuation methodologies considered appropriate.
However, considerable judgement is required to interpret
market data to develop the estimates of fair values.
Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realise
in a current market exchange. The use of different market
assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a

material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

The following summarise the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of the

Group's financial instruments.

The carrying values of the Group’s current financial assets
and liabilities are estimated to approximate to their fair
values based on the nature or short-term maturity of these

instruments.

The carrying value of the Group’'s non-current financial
liabilities are estimated to approximate their fair values
based on a discounted cash flow approach using interest

rates available to the Group for similar indebtedness.
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35.

E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
RZZEERF=A=+—H ' x5H At 31 March 2006, the total future minimum lease payments
ERBETARE 2 LEHELMNR under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
REEHSEBOAT : premises are payable as follows:
r5H
The Group
ZEEXRE —TTRF
2006 2005
BYTF T BEF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within 1 year 3,061 1,578
—FREAFRA After 1 year but within 5 years 1,228 1,116
4,289 2,694
REER  AARTESERKCEHE The Company had no significant operating lease commitments
HHE o at the balance sheet date.
HFREE 35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RZZBTRF=ZA=+—H x5£EH At 31 March 2006, the contingent liabilities of the Group and
REAQABzABEHRARDAT the Company were summarised as follows:
r5H b N
The Group The Company
ZEERF _—TTLF ZBERFE _"TTHF
2006 2005 2006 2005
BEFT HETF T BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BUYE=FRMHZ  Claims by an independent
AR (fiFi) third party (note i) 4,808 — 4,808 —
H—EEE L Guarantees given to outsiders
R 2B H=E in respect of a service
i SNR A B agreement signed by
fEH 2 R an associate — — — 3,150
4,808 — 4,808 3,150
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35. REEFE (&)

)y RBEZTEZERF=ZA=+-—
HIEFE - X2 a &Top
Olympic Enterprise Limited (Z& 2
AlzMBAR) METELE=
F(IHEEADREREAEE
1,500,0007T F & 7| 8 2 )& & F
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% B8R & # 4,808,0007T Z &
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35.

36.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Company and
Top Olympic Enterprise Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, lodged a legal claim against certain independent
third parties (the “Defendants”) a sum of HK$1,500,000
and interest thereon. One of the Defendants counterclaimed
the Company for the amount of HK$4,808,000 plus interest
and legal costs. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required from the counterclaim. Accordingly, no provision
in respect thereof has been made in the financial

statements.

NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, certain minority
shareholders of the Company’s former subsidiary issued a Writ
of Summons against the Company and the former subsidiary of
the Company claiming for losses and damages, for an unspecified
amount, resulting from not arranging additional financing to
that former subsidiary for operational and development needs.
After taking into account of the advice from the Company's
legal adviser, the directors are of the opinion that the claims are
groundless and it is not probable that it would result in an
outflow of economic benefits. Accordingly, no provision in respect

thereof has been made in the financial statements.
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

37.

(LA ®5{E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the

following related party transactions.

(a) Sales of inventories to a related company

During the year ended 31 March 2006, Tidetime Future
Optical Media Technology Limited (“Tidetime Future
Optical”), a subsidiary of the Company, supplied multi-
media products to Tide Time USA Corporation, a company
controlled by Mr. Chen Ping (“Mr. Chen"”), the chairman
and executive director of the Company, amounting to
HK$743,000 (2005: Nil) under similar terms as it trades
with other customers. In the opinion of the directors, the
transaction was carried out in the ordinary course of

business and on normal commercial terms.

(b) Purchases of inventories from a related company

During the year ended 31 March 2006, it R & EFH K K&
BEEAERAB ([FRERE]), a company controlled by the
spouse and daughter of Mr. Chen, supplies 1t RZ& &5 %
BZERE AR ([BXEZE]), asubsidiary of the Company,
with the publishing products amounting to HK$56,000
(2005: Nil). In the opinion of the directors, the transaction
was carried out in the ordinary course of business and on

normal commercial terms.
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37. EXBEALXRZ (&)

37.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) BBELQTBK (c) Advances from related companies
RBEE-_ZTEF=ZRA=1+— During the year ended 31 March 2006, the following parties
BIEFE @ T ALTHBIAEAR advanced to the Group and the Company a sum of
SERARFBEIRBEE HK$11,186,000 (2005: Nil) and HK$2,730,000 (2005: Nil)
11,186,000C (Z T Z R F respectively. The amounts are unsecured, non-interest
&) & A5 %2,730,000C (Z 2 & bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. A sum of
hEFEE)  FEREER 2 HK$10,730,000 and HK$2,730,000 had been repaid by
EREETENY - REE= the Group and the Company respectively during the year
EEREFZA=T—HIL#HEF ended 31 March 2006.

B RXEBERAXRRAREHHIME
BREE10,730,0007T R A
2,730,0007T 2 B 5K °
vy VNN
The Group The Company
B B E- B
Advance Repayment Advance Repayment
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
G Yean Electronics G Yean Electronics Technology
Technology Company Company Limited
Limited 1,137 (1,137) — —
Shenzhen Tidetime Shenzhen Tidetime Technology
Technology Company Company Limited
Limited 2,627 (2,627) — —
ZEEEREBERAAE Tide Fuhua Technology Limited 3,553 (3,553) 2,730 (2,730)
RYIR Hh 78 5 RN R 7 5
AR AT AR QA 3,413 (3,413) — —
tREFERREEHE Tt REBRREHE
ERARRAA ERARRAA 456 — — —
11,186 (10,730) 2,730 (2,730)
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E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements

37.

(LA IE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Advances from related companies (Continued)

Shenzhen Tidetime Technology Company Limited and &3
A i 75 % B B A 7] are companies controlled by Mr. Chen.
G Yean Electronics Technology Company Limited, Tide Fuhua
Technology Limited and It R X BREBHELERER A 7,
are companies controlled by Mr. Chen and Ms. Ma Jian

Ying (“Ms. Ma"), who are the directors of the Company.

Guarantees given by a director of the Company and a

related company

During the year ended 31 March 2006, Mr. Chen and Tide
Fuhua Technology Limited, a company controlled by Mr.
Chen and Ms. Ma, had given personal guarantee and
corporate guarantee respectively to the extent of
HK$4,000,000 in favour of a bank for banking facilities
granted to Tidetime Future Optical. At 31 March 2006, the

guarantees had been cancelled.

Guarantee given to an ex-associate

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Company had
given guarantee to in favour of an independent third party
in respect of a service agreement signed by Sun Television
Cybernetworks Enterprise Limited (“Sun Enterprise”), an
ex-associate of the Group (note 20). According to the
guarantee, the Company bore an expense of HK$2,717,000
(2005: Nil).
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37. EXBEALXRZ (&)
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37.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Amounts due from associates

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the amount due
from Sun Enterprise to the Company was HK$377,000 and

the Company made full impairment against the amount.

At 31 March 2005, the amounts due from the associates
to the Group were HK$1,870,000 and the Group had made
full provision against these amounts due from the

associates.

Acquisition of a subsidiary from a related company

On 24 August 2004, the Company entered into an
agreement with Tide Time Holdings Limited, a company
controlled by Mr. Chen, whereby the Company agreed to
purchase and Tide Time Holdings Limited agreed to sell
the entire 100% interest in the share capital of Tidetime
Future Optical Media Technology Limited (“Tidetime Future
Optical”) for a consideration of HK$55,005,000. In the
opinion of the Company’s directors, the transaction was
carried out on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary

course of business.

152

== 3 (& @)A R 2 & TIDETIME SUN (GROUP) LIMITED



E: & e Notes to the Financial Statements
(54 7 ¥ 51 {8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. EXFEEALTRS (&) 37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(h) I—ERELATHE BB (h)

Disposals of a subsidiary to a related company

A
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On 22 December 2004, the Company entered into a
conditional agreement with Sun Media Investment Limited
(“SMI"), a company controlled by Ms. Yang Lan (a former
vice-chairman and executive director of the Company) and
Dr. Wu Zheng, Bruno (the former executive director of the
Company and spouse of Ms. Yang Lan), whereby the
Company agreed to sell and SMI agreed to purchase the
entire 100% interest in the share capital of China Sports
Media Limited, which was acquired by the Company during
the year, for a consideration of HK$46,200,000. The
consideration is satisfied (i) in cash and/or (ii) by way of
transfer of the investments, which are traded on the Stock
Exchange, the stock exchange of the United States and/or
other stock markets and satisfy certain criteria as set out
in the circular dated 14 January 2005. The settlement must
be made within 180 days after the completion of this
transaction. In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the
transaction was carried out on normal commercial terms

and in the ordinary course of business.

On 24 August 2005, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement with SMI pursuant to which the
settlement date was extended and an interest was imposed
on the consideration of HK$46,200,000 at 6.75% per
annum for such extension, which was resulted in
HK$1,000,000 interest income to the Company from SMI.
Further details are set out in the announcement dated 25

August 2005 issued by the Company.
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37. EXBEALXRZ (&)

(h)y I—ERELATHE BB

o\ (&)

RZZEZTRE+=A  HGHrE
B2 G & 41,849,131/ Sun New
Media Inc. ([SNMDJ) (B 3 Fl| &2
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37.

38.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(h) Disposals of a subsidiary to a related company
(Continued)

In December 2005, SMI settled the consideration of
HK$46,200,000 and the interest of HK$1,000,000 on the
consideration, in form of 1,849,131 shares in Sun New
Media Inc. (“SNMD"), a company incorporated in the State
of Minnesota in the United States of America with its shares
traded on a stock exchange system in the United States of
America. The pricing of the 1,849,131 shares in SNMD
was 85% of the average closing price per share of SNMD
during the last ten trading days of SNMD up to and

including the day of settlement.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted or re-classified
as a result of the changes in accounting policies, details of which
are disclosed in note 3. In addition, certain comparative figures
have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s

presentation.
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(LA IE)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 4

BESFERE 1R 285
Amendment to HKAS 1

BE G ERIE395 2185
Amendment to HKAS 39

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

BHEREZ2I T BARE

Presentation of financial statements: capital disclosures

MEIA: EREGE : A
Financial instruments: recognition and measurement:

39. RBIZ-ZZX"F=A=1+—H  39. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
HFEFEEFHERACSHBER INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ERZBET - HEBEARZRER ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2006
REEZE
BEZEVBEHRETIZZBE - 25160 Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
NEE WML RISFTER M RE has issued the following amendments, new standards and
MBE_TEF=A=1+—HIF interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting

FHFEBRER - MARRZEH period ended 31 March 2006 and which have not been adopted
ﬁ%#&i’%qﬂ%}ﬂ ZAEET - 2R R E in these financial statements:
BT
Hh LT RAIGEEANER K& Of these developments, the following relate to matters that may
BRMERERERM EIE be relevant to the Group’s operations and financial statements:
RUEEBHAIEZ
B HEER
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
HK(IFRIC) — @B F 45 ErxHRABREEE —TEXRF-A—H

1 January 2006

kb i
1 January 2007

FE “TIAF-A-E

1 January 2006

the fair value option

BEAMBRELAUBTH
HKFRS 7
SN - —ERRHFEAR (BRI EHIE

RZZBTRFT_A—BER MR
E.ZM%ﬁiaﬁ_qinﬂﬂ
—HRzEgHEEEER -

REEERTE LMEET - FgFEER
M REERYEEREANRSES

MBS HBEZERRARMZE
B5] 2 EARRBHAEE 2K
EEBRMBRAREEERTE T
BEETRAK o

B%IE: HE

Financial instruments: disclosures

—2TtF—A—H
1 January 2007

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies (Amendment) Ordinance
2005 came into effect on 1 December 2005 and would be first
applicable to the Group’s financial statements for the period
beginning 1 April 2006.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of

operations and financial position.
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